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Independent auditor’s report to the Council of Governors of 
Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust NHS Foundation 
Trust 

Report on the audit of the financial statements 

Opinion on the financial statements 
We have audited the financial statements of Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust (‘the Trust’) 
and its subsidiaries (‘the Group’) for the year ended 31 March 2022 which comprise the Trust and Group 
Statements of Comprehensive Income, the Trust and Group Statements of Financial Position, the Trust 
and Group Consolidated Statements of Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity , the Trust and Group Statements 
of Cash Flows, and notes to the financial statements, including the summary of significant accounting 
policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law 
and international accounting standards as interpreted and adapted by HM Treasury’s Financial 
Reporting Manual 2021/22 as contained in the Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting 
Manual 2021/22, and the Accounts Direction issued under the National Health Service Act 2006. 

In our opinion, the financial statements: 
• give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Trust and Group as at 31 March 2022

and of the Trust’s and the Group’s income and expenditure for the year then ended;
• have been properly prepared in accordance with the Department of Health and Social Care

Group Accounting Manual 2021/22; and
• have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the National Health

Service Act 2006.

Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and 
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
responsibilities section of our report. We are independent of the Trust and Group in accordance with 
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including 
the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern 
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Accounting Officer’s use of the going 
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. 

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to 
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Trust's or the 
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the 
financial statements are authorised for issue.  

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Accounting Officer with respect to going concern are 
described in the relevant sections of this report. 

Other information 
The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the Annual Report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our 
opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent 
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If 
we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to 
determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material 
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there 
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. 



We have nothing to report in these regards. 

Responsibilities of the Accounting Officer for the financial statements 
As explained more fully in the Statement of Accounting Officer's Responsibilities, the Accounting Officer 
is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true 
and fair view, and for such internal control as the Accounting Officer determines is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

The Accounting Officer is required to comply with the Department of Health and Social Care Group 
Accounting Manual 2021/22 and prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis, unless the 
Trust is informed of the intention for dissolution without transfer of services or function to another entity. 
The Accounting Officer is responsible for assessing each year whether or not it is appropriate for the 
Trust and Group to prepare financial statements on the going concern basis and disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern.  

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements. 

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design 
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect 
of irregularities, including fraud. Based on our understanding of the Trust and Group, we identified that 
the principal risks of non-compliance with laws and regulations related to the National Health Service 
Act 2006 (as amended by the Health and Social Care Act 2012), and we considered the extent to which 
non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements.   

We evaluated the Accounting Officer’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the 
financial statements (including the risk of override of controls) and determined that the principal risks 
were related to posting manual journal entries to manipulate financial performance, management bias 
through judgements and assumptions in significant accounting estimates, and significant one-off or 
unusual transactions.  

Our audit procedures were designed to respond to those identified risks, including non-compliance with 
laws and regulations (irregularities) and fraud that are material to the financial statements. Our audit 
procedures included but were not limited to: 

• discussing with management and the Audit Committee the policies and procedures regarding
compliance with laws and regulations;

• communicating identified laws and regulations throughout our engagement team and remaining
alert to any indications of non-compliance throughout our audit; and

• considering the risk of acts by the Trust and Group which were contrary to applicable laws and
regulations, including fraud.

Our audit procedures in relation to fraud included but were not limited to: 
• making enquiries of management and the Audit Committee on whether they had knowledge of

any actual, suspected or alleged fraud;
• gaining an understanding of the internal controls established to mitigate risks related to fraud;
• discussing amongst the engagement team the risks of fraud; and
• addressing the risks of fraud through management override of controls by performing journal

entry testing.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the primary responsibility 
for the prevention and detection of irregularities including fraud rests with management and the Audit 
Committee. As with any audit, there remained a risk of non-detection of irregularities, as these may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal controls. 



We are also required to conclude on whether the Accounting Officer’s use of the going concern basis 
of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.  We performed our work in 
accordance with Practice Note 10: Audit of financial statements and regularity of public sector bodies 
in the United Kingdom, and Supplementary Guidance Note 01, issued by the Comptroller and Auditor 
General in April 2021.   
 
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the 
Financial Reporting Council’s website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms 
part of our auditor’s report. 
 
 
Report on the Trust’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in the use of resources 
 
Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
We are required to report to you if, in our opinion, we are not satisfied that the Trust has made proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year 
ended 31 March 2022. 
 
We have nothing to report in this respect.  
 
Responsibilities of the Accounting Officer 
The Chief Executive as Accounting Officer is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to 
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the Trust’s use of resources, to ensure proper 
stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these 
arrangements. 
 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in the use of resources 
We are required by Schedule 10(1) of the National Health Service Act 2006 to satisfy ourselves that the 
Trust has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources.  We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Trust’s 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating 
effectively. 
 
We have undertaken our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the 
guidance issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in December 2021. 
 
 
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 
 
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Code of Audit Practice 
In our opinion: 

• the parts of the Remuneration and Staff Report subject to audit have been properly prepared in 
accordance with the requirements of the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual 
2021/22; and 

• the other information published together with the audited financial statements in the Annual 
Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with 
the financial statements. 

 
 
Matters on which we are required to report by exception under the Code of Audit Practice 
We are required to report to you if: 

• in our opinion the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with the NHS Foundation 
Trust Annual Reporting Manual 2021/22; or 

• the Annual Governance Statement is misleading or is not consistent with our knowledge of the 
Trust and Group and other information of which we are aware from our audit of the financial 
statements; or 

• we refer a matter to the regulator under Schedule 10(6) of the National Health Service Act 2006; 
or 

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities


• we issue a report in the public interest under Schedule 10(3) of the National Health Service Act
2006.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters. 

Use of the audit report 
This report is made solely to the Council of Governors of Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust 
as a body in accordance with Schedule 10(4) of the National Health Service Act 2006.  Our audit work 
has been undertaken so that we might state to the Council of Governors of the Trust those matters we 
are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent 
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Council of 
Governors of the Trust as a body for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

Certificate 
We certify that we have completed the audit of Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust and 
Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust Group in accordance with the requirements of chapter 5 
of part 2 of the National Health Service Act 2006 and the Code of Audit Practice. 

Karen Murray -  Key Audit Partner 
For and on behalf of Mazars LLP 

One St Peter’s Square 
Manchester 
M2 3DE 

21 June 2022 



Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust

Annual accounts for the year ended 31 March 2022

1





Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Accounts 2021/2022

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Trust Group Trust Group

2021/22 2021/22 2020/21 2020/21
Note £000 £000 £000 £000

Operating income from patient care activities 2 2,190,559 2,190,559 1,729,382 1,729,382 
Other operating income 2 282,305 284,151 422,856 427,835 
Operating expenses 3, 4 (2,504,345) (2,508,750) (2,147,261) (2,153,697)

Operating (deficit)/surplus from continuing operations (31,481) (34,040) 4,977 3,520 

Finance income 6 154 679 30 566 
Finance expenses 7 (40,718) (40,718) (40,784) (40,784)
PDC dividends payable (325) (325) - - 

Net finance costs (40,889) (40,364) (40,754) (40,218)
Other losses 8.2 (628) (628) (94) (94)
Gains and losses arising from transfers by absorption 2 61,680 61,680 2,979 2,979
Corporation tax expense - - - - 

Deficit for the year from continuing operations (11,318) (13,352) (32,892) (33,813)
Deficit for the year (11,318) (13,352) (32,892) (33,813)

Other comprehensive income
Will not be reclassified to income and expenditure:

Impairments 8.1 - - (750) (750)
Revaluations 21 28,567 28,567 3,835 3,835 
Other reserve movements (1,841) (1,841) - - 

May be reclassified to income and expenditure when certain conditions are met:
Fair value gains on financial assets mandated at fair value 
through OCI 11 - 440 - 3,859

Total comprehensive income / (expense) for the period 15,408 13,814 (29,807) (26,869)

The notes on pages 7 to 46 form part of these accounts.
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Statement of Financial Position Trust Group Trust Group
31 March 

2022

31 March 

2022

31 March 

2021

31 March 

2021

Note £000 £000 £000 £000
Non-current assets

Intangible assets 9 16,107 16,107 4,665 4,665 

Property, plant and equipment 10 798,636 798,693 642,394 642,458 

Investment property - 3 - 3 

Other investments / financial assets 11 870 25,415 1,498 23,800 

Receivables 14 15,657 15,665 5,645 5,645 

Total non-current assets 831,270 855,883 654,202 676,571 

Current assets

Inventories 13 21,809 21,809 21,892 21,892 

Receivables 14 88,379 88,571 108,561 109,062 

Non-current assets held for sale 12 2,510 2,510 210 210 

Cash and cash equivalents 15 319,112 323,320 271,199 277,419 

Total current assets 431,810 436,210 401,862 408,583 

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 16 (382,849) (382,926) (321,349) (321,542)

Borrowings 18 (24,001) (24,001) (20,290) (20,290)

Provisions 19 (52,636) (52,636) (24,875) (24,875)

Other liabilities 17 (59,360) (62,687) (35,084) (36,778)

Total current liabilities (518,846) (522,250) (401,598) (403,485)

Total assets less current liabilities 744,234 769,843 654,466 681,669 

Non-current liabilities

Trade and other payables 16 - - (2,598) (2,598)

Borrowings 18 (371,694) (371,694) (374,948) (374,948)

Provisions 19 (13,903) (13,903) (16,622) (16,622)

Other liabilities 17 (2,386) (2,386) (3,817) (3,817)

Total non-current liabilities (387,983) (387,983) (397,985) (397,985)

Total assets employed 356,251 381,860 256,481 283,684 

Financed by 

Public dividend capital SoCIE 408,780 408,780 258,929 258,929 

Revaluation reserve SoCIE 97,411 97,411 63,492 63,492 

Income and expenditure reserve SoCIE (149,940) (149,940) (65,940) (65,940)

Charitable fund reserves 31 - 25,609 - 27,203

Total taxpayers' equity 356,251 381,860 256,481 283,684 

The notes on pages 7 to 46 form part of these accounts.



Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Accounts 2021/2022

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2022

Trust

Public 

dividend 

capital

Revaluation 

reserve

Income and 

expenditure reserve Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 
Taxpayers' and others' equity at 1 April 2021 - brought 

forward 258,929 63,492 (65,940) 256,481 

Surplus/(deficit) for the year - - (11,318) (11,318)

Transfers by absorption: transfers between reserves 65,489 5,352 (70,841) - 

Revaluations - 28,567 - 28,567 

Fair value gains/(losses) on financial assets mandated 

at fair value through OCI - - - - 

Public dividend capital received 84,462 - - 84,462 

Public dividend capital repaid (100) - - (100)

Alignment of accounting policies following transfer by 

absorption - - (1,841) (1,841)

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 31 March 2022 408,780 97,411 (149,940) 356,251 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2021

Trust

Public 

dividend 

capital

Revaluation 

reserve

Income and 

expenditure reserve Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 
Taxpayers' and others' equity at 1 April 2020 - brought 

forward 208,994 49,424 (22,065) 236,353 

Surplus/(deficit) for the year - - (37,181) (37,181)

Transfers by absorption: transfers between reserves - 1,296 (1,296) - 

Impairments - (750) - (750)

Revaluations - 3,835 - 3,835 
Fair value gains/(losses) on financial assets mandated 

at fair value through OCI - - - - 

Public dividend capital received 49,935 - - 49,935 

Other reserve movements - 9,687 (5,398) 4,289 

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 31 March 2021 258,929 63,492 (65,940) 256,481 



Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Accounts 2021/2022

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2022

Group

Public 

dividend 

capital

Revaluation 

reserve

Income and 

expenditure 

reserve

Charitable 

fund 

reserves Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Taxpayers' and others' equity at 1 April 2021 - brought 

forward 258,929 63,492 (65,940) 27,203 283,684 

Surplus/(deficit) for the year - - (14,134) 782 (13,352)

Transfers by absorption: transfers between reserves 65,489 5,352 (70,841) - - 

Revaluations - 28,567 - - 28,567 

Fair value gains/(losses) on financial assets mandated 

at fair value through OCI - - - 440 440 

Public dividend capital received 84,462 - - - 84,462 

Public dividend capital repaid (100) - - - (100)

Alignment of accounting policies following transfer by 

absorption - - (1,841) - (1,841)

Other reserve movements- Charitable fund - - 2,816 (2,816) - 

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 31 March 2022 408,780 97,411 (149,940) 25,609 381,860 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2021

Group

Public 

dividend 

capital

Revaluation 

reserve

Income and 

expenditure 

reserve

Charitable 

fund 

reserves Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Taxpayers' and others' equity at 1 April 2020 - brought 

forward 208,994 49,424 (22,065) 24,265 260,618 

Surplus/(deficit) for the year - - (37,181) 3,368 (33,813)

Transfers by absorption: transfers between reserves - 1,296 (1,296) - - 

Impairments - (750) - - (750)

Revaluations - 3,835 - - 3,835 
Fair value gains/(losses) on financial assets mandated 

at fair value through OCI - - - 3,859 3,859 

Public dividend capital received 49,935 - - - 49,935 

Other reserve movements - 9,687 (5,398) (4,289) - 

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 31 March 2021 258,929 63,492 (65,940) 27,203 283,684 



Statement of Cash Flows

Trust Group Trust Group

2021/22 2021/22 2020/21 2020/21

Note £000 £000 £000 £000 

Cash flows from operating activities

Operating (deficit) / surplus (31,481) (34,040) 4,977 3,520 

Non-cash income and expense:

Depreciation and amortisation 3 35,906 35,913 28,660 28,667 

Net impairments 8.1 91,430 91,430 77,525 77,525 

Income recognised in respect of capital donations 2 (6,677) (3,861) (5,321) (1,032)

Decrease in receivables and other assets 15,457 15,457 8,781 6,507 

Decrease / (Increase) in inventories 1,019 1,019 (3,274) (3,274)

Increase in payables and other liabilities 68,715 68,715 129,585 129,585 

(Decrease) / Increase in provisions 18,758 18,758 13,507 13,507 

Movements in charitable fund working capital - 1,817 - 1,849 

Other movements in operating cash flows (3) (3) - - 

Net cash flows from operating activities 193,124 195,205 254,440 256,854 

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received 154 154 30 30 

Purchase of intangible assets (22,275) (22,275) (16,962) (16,962)

Purchase of PPE and investment property (160,322) (160,322) (96,362) (96,362)

Receipt of cash donations to purchase assets 5,994 3,178 4,289 - 

Net cash flows from charitable fund investing activities - (1,277) - 536 

Net cash flows used in investing activities (176,449) (180,542) (109,005) (112,758)

Cash flows from financing activities

Public dividend capital received SoCIE 84,462 84,462 49,935 49,935 

Public dividend capital repaid SoCIE (100) (100) - - 

Loans from DHSC - received 18.1 2,600 2,600 3,200 3,200 

Loans from DHSC - repaid 18.1 (8,291) (8,291) (7,125) (7,125)

Repayment of other loans 18.1 (637) (637) (802) (802)

Capital element of PFI service concession payments 18.1 (12,284) (12,284) (11,614) (11,614)

Interest on loans (3,139) (3,139) (2,709) (2,709)

Other interest (1) (1) - - 

Interest paid on PFI service concession obligations (37,684) (37,684) (38,181) (38,181)

PDC dividend paid - - (221) (221)

Net cash flows from / (used in) financing activities 24,926 24,926 (7,517) (7,517)

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 41,601 39,590 137,918 136,579 

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April - brought forward 271,199 277,419 133,281 140,840 

Cash and cash equivalents transferred under absorption 

accounting

2.7 6,311 6,311 - - 

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 15 319,112 323,320 271,199 277,419 

Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Accounts 2021/2022



Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Accounts 2021/2022

Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies and other information

1.1 Basis of Preparation

NHS Improvement (NHSI), in exercising the statutory functions conferred on Monitor, has directed that the

financial statements of the Trust shall meet the accounting requirements of the Department of Health and

Social Care Group Accounting Manual (GAM), which shall be agreed with HM Treasury. Consequently, the

following financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the GAM 2021/22 issued by the

Department of Health and Social Care. The accounting policies contained in the GAM follow International

Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to the NHS, as

determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board. Where the GAM

permits a choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy that is judged to be most appropriate to the

particular circumstances of the Trust and the Group (see Note 1.4 below in respect of Consolidation and

Group Accounting), for the purpose of giving a true and fair view, has been selected. The particular policies

adopted by the Trust and the Group are described below. They have been applied consistently in dealing

with items considered material in relation to these Accounts.

1.2 Accounting Convention

These Accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention, modified to account for the

revaluation of land, buildings and investments, by reference to their most recent valuations. Plant,

equipment and intangible assets are held at depreciated historic cost. The Accounts are presented rounded

to the nearest thousand pounds.

1.3 Going Concern

These  accounts  have  been  prepared  on  a  going  concern  basis.  The  financial  reporting  framework

applicable to NHS bodies, derived from the HM Treasury Financial Reporting Manual, defines that the

anticipated  continued  provision  of  the  entity’s  services  in  the  public  sector  is  normally  sufficient

evidence of going concern. Management has a reasonable expectation that this will continue to be the case.

1.4 Consolidation of Subsidiaries and Group Accounting

The Trust is the corporate trustee to Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust Charity (MFT Charity).

The MFT Charity is a charity registered (No.1049274) with the independent regulator, the Charity

Commission, to whom it is accountable. The Trust has assessed its relationship to the Charity and

determined it to be a subsidiary, the Trust has the sole power to govern the financial and operating policies

of the Charity, so as to obtain benefits from the Charity's activities for itself, its patients and its staff.   

The MFT Charity's statutory accounts will be prepared to 31 March 2022 in accordance with the UK Charities

Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) which is based on UK Financial Reporting Standard 102

(FRS 102). On consolidation, necessary adjustments are made to the charity’s assets, liabilities and

transactions as follows:

● The Charity's individual statements and notes to the Accounts are adjusted firstly for one difference in

accounting policy. This relates to expenditure accounted for on a commitment basis which is not permitted

under the Trust's and the Group's accounting conventions, as set out above; and 
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Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Accounts 2021/2022

Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

● The Charity's individual statements and notes to the Accounts are adjusted in respect of transactions and

balances which have taken place between the Trust and the Charity. These intra company balances and

transactions are eliminated on consolidation and the resulting figures for Income and Expenditure; gains and

losses; assets and liabilities; reserves; and cash flows, are then consolidated with those of the Trust, to form

the Group Accounts. The classification of the investments follow the accounting standard IFRS9 and they

are classified as fair value through through Other Comprehensive Income instruments.

These Accounting Policies apply to both the Trust and the Group. The MFT Charity's latest Audited

Accounts, which have been prepared in accordance with the UK Charities Statement of Recommended

Practice (SORP), can be obtained from the Charity Commission website. Accounts for the financial year

ending 31 March 2022 will be prepared by the Charity, and will be submitted to the Charity Commission.

The MFT Charity is based at the following address:-

Citylabs, Maurice Watkins Building, Nelson Street, Manchester. M13 9NQ.

As a subsidiary of the Trust, the Charity is able to transfer funds to the Trust, providing that this funding is

over and above what the NHS would normally provide, and is in line with the objectives of the Charity.  

The MFT Charity is the Trust's sole subsidiary.

1.5 Acquisitions and Discontinued Operations

Activities are considered to be "acquired" only if they are taken on from outside the public sector. Activities

are considered to be "discontinued" only if they cease entirely. They are not considered to be "discontinued"

if they transfer from one NHS body to another (see also Notes 1.33 & 2.7). The Trust and the Group did not

have any acquisitions or discontinued operations during the year to 31 March 2022.

1.6 Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 

In the application of the Trust’s and the Group's Accounting Policies, management is required to make

judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities, and for other

areas, where precise information is not readily apparent from any source. The estimates and associated

assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors which are considered to be relevant.

Actual results may differ from those estimates, and the estimates and underlying assumptions are

continually reviewed and updated. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which

the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, or in future periods, as well as that of the

revision, if required.

Key Judgements and Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation

uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment

to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year:-

Valuation of Land and Buildings

The valuation of the Trust's land and buildings is subject to estimation uncertainty. Independent valuers

provide advice on valuations, as at 31 March 2022, of the Trust's and the Group's land and building assets

(estimated financial value and estimated remaining useful life), applying a Modern Equivalent Asset method

of valuation for an optimised building and alternate site with regards to land.  This is based on a theoretical

configuration of facilities on the Trust main hospital sites, providing a more efficient and compact design. 

The Trust considers that in line with the GAM this is an appropriate basis. More detail of the desktop

valuation and the carrying amounts of the Trust's Land and Buildings is included in note 10.  

The valuation exercise was carried out in January 2022 with a valuation date of 31 March 2022, applying the

Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Valuation Global Standards 2017 (‘Red Book’).
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Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Accounts 2021/2022

Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

Of the £646m net book value of land and buildings subject to valuation, £626m relates to specialised assets

valued on a depreciated replacement cost basis. Here the valuer bases their assessment on the cost to the

Trust of replacing the service potential of the assets. 

An increase of 1% in the land and building values would result in a net book value of £652m and an

increase of 5% would result in a net book value of £678m

It is possible that the COVID-19 pandemic will affect the Trust’s future assessment of what would be

required in a modern equivalent asset, but as yet there is insufficient evidence to affect the assumptions

used in the valuation. 

Financial value of provisions for liabilities and charges

The Trust and the Group make financial provisions for obligations of uncertain timing or amount at the date

of the Statement of Financial Position. These are based on estimates, using as much relevant information

as is available, at the time the financial statements are prepared. They are reviewed to confirm that the

values included in the financial statements best reflect the current relevant information, and where

necessary, the values of the provisions are amended. More detail on this area is given in Note 1.21.

1.7 Revenue from contracts with customers

Where income is derived from contracts with customers, it is accounted for under IFRS 15. The GAM

expands the definition of a contract to include legislation and regulations which enables an entity to receive

cash or another financial asset that is not classified as a tax by the Office of National Statistics (ONS).

Revenue in respect of goods/services provided is recognised when (or as) performance obligations are

satisfied by transferring promised goods/services to the customer and is measured at the amount of the

transaction price allocated to those performance obligations. At the year end, the Trust accrues income

relating to performance obligations satisfied in that year. Where the Trust’s entitlement to consideration for

those goods or services is unconditional a contract receivable will be recognised. Where entitlement to

consideration is conditional on a further factor other than the passage of time, a contract asset will be

recognised. Where consideration received or receivable relates to a performance obligation that is to be

satisfied in a future period, the income is deferred and recognised as a contract liability in note 19. 

The main source of income for the Trust is contracts with commissioners for health care services. A

performance obligation relating to delivery of a spell of health care is generally satisfied over time as

healthcare is received and consumed simultaneously by the customer as the Trust performs it. The

customer in such a contract is the commissioner, but the customer benefits as services are provided to their

patient. Even where a contract could be broken down into separate performance obligations, healthcare

generally aligns with paragraph 22(b) of the Standard entailing a delivery of a series of goods or services

that are substantially the same and have a similar pattern of transfer. At the year end, the Trust accrues

income relating to activity delivered in that year, where a patient care spell is incomplete. This accrual is

disclosed as a contract receivable as entitlement to payment for work completed is usually only dependent

on the passage of time.

Further changes were made to the NHS funding regime in 2021/22, with the removal of most top-up and

other re-imbursement income streams, and the introduction of the Elective Recovery Fund. These have

changed the income available to the Trust, but the total envelope of funds remains of a similar size, such

that the trust expects to be able to achieve it's financial target for the year.

10



Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Accounts 2021/2022

Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

The decommissioning and closure of the Nightingale Northwest Hospital was announced in March 2021

and achieved in April. The amount of income that the trust has received to support it's hosting of this facility

has therefore been significantly smaller than the previous year.

Other income recognised due to the COVID-19 pandemic relates to donated Personal Protection

Equipment (PPE) from the DHSC, this has been recognised as notional income of £5.295m in note 2.1.

Where research contracts fall under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised as and when performance obligations

are satisfied. For some contracts, it is assessed that the revenue project constitutes one performance

obligation over the course of the multi-year contract. In these cases, it is assessed that the Trust’s interim

performance does not create an asset with alternative use for the Trust, and the Trust has an enforceable

right to payment for the performance completed to date. It is therefore considered that the performance

obligation is satisfied over time, and the Trust recognises revenue each year over the course of the

contract.

The Trust receives income under the NHS injury cost recovery scheme, designed to reclaim the cost of

treating injured individuals to whom personal injury compensation has subsequently been paid, for instance

by an insurer. The Trust recognises the income when it receives notification from the Department of Work

and Pension's Compensation Recovery Unit, has completed the NHS2 form and confirmed there are no

discrepancies with the treatment. The income is measured at the agreed tariff for the treatments provided to

the injured individual, less an allowance for unsuccessful compensation claims and doubtful debts in line

with IFRS 9 requirements of measuring expected credit losses over the lifetime of the asset.

Income from the sale of Non-Current Assets is recognised only when all material conditions of sale have

been met, and is measured as the sums due under the sale contract.

Apprenticeship Service Income

The value of the benefit received when accessing funds from the Government's apprenticeship service is

recognised as income at the point of receipt of the training service. Where these funds are paid directly to

an accredited training provider from the Trust's Digital Apprenticeship Service (DAS) account held by the

Department for Education, the corresponding notional expense is also recognised at the point of recognition

for the benefit for the staff member.

1.8 Employee Benefits

1.8.1 Short-Term Employee Benefits

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in which the service is

received from the employee. The cost of annual leave entitlement earned but not taken by employees at

the end of the period is recognised in the financial statements to the extent that employees are permitted to

carry-forward leave into the following period.
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1.8.2 Pension Costs

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pension Schemes or the

National Employment Savings Trust (NEST). Details of the benefits payable and rules of the Schemes can

be found on the NHS Pensions or NEST website at:-

www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions  and https://www.nestpensions.org.uk.

Both are unfunded defined benefit schemes that cover NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies,

allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care in England and Wales.

They are not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the

underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, each scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined

contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS body of participating in each scheme is taken as equal to the

contributions payable to that scheme for the accounting period.

In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially

from those that would be determined at the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM

requires that “the period between formal valuations shall be four years, with approximate assessments in

intervening years”. An outline of these follows:

a) Accounting Valuation - NHS Pension Scheme

A valuation of scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary (currently the Government

Actuary’s Department) as at the end of the reporting period. This utilises an actuarial assessment for the

previous accounting period in conjunction with updated membership and financial data for the current

reporting period, and is accepted as providing suitably robust figures for financial reporting purposes. The

valuation of the scheme liability as at 31 March 2022, is based on valuation data as 31 March 2021,

updated to 31 March 2022 with summary global member and accounting data. In undertaking this actuarial

assessment, the methodology prescribed in IAS 19, relevant FReM interpretations, and the discount rate

prescribed by HM Treasury have also been used.

The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the report of the scheme actuary,

which forms part of the annual NHS Pension Scheme Accounts. These accounts can be viewed on the

NHS Pensions website and are published annually. Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery

Office.

b) Full actuarial (funding) valuation

The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the

schemes (taking into account recent demographic experience), and to recommend contribution rates

payable by employees and employers. 

The latest actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed as at 31 March

2016. The results of this valuation set the employer contribution rate payable from April 2019 to 20.6% of

pensionable pay. The 2016 funding valuation also tested the cost of the Scheme relative to the employer

cost cap that was set following the 2012 valuation. There was initially a pause to the cost control element of

the 2016 valuations, due to the uncertainty around member benefits caused by the discrimination ruling

relating to the McCloud case. 

HMT published valuation directions dated 7 October 2021 (see Amending Directions 2021) that set out the

technical detail of how the costs of remedy are included in the 2016 valuation process. Following these

directions, the scheme actuary has completed the cost control element of the 2016 valuation for the NHS

Pension Scheme, which concludes no changes to benefits or member contributions are required. The 2016

valuation reports can be found on the NHS Pensions website at https://www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/nhs-pension-

scheme-accounts-and-valuation-reports.
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Employer's pension cost contributions for all schemes are charged to operating expenses as and when they

become due. In 2021/2022 these contributions amounted to £174.181m (2020/21: £144.330m), as detailed in

note 4.

1.9 Expenditure on Other Goods and Services

Expenditure on goods and services is recognised when, and to the extent that, they have been received, and

is always measured (at least initially) at the cost of those goods and services. Expenditure is recognised in

operating expenses except where it results in the creation of a Non-Current Asset, e.g. property or equipment

(see Note 1.11 below).

Other expenditure recognised due to the COVID-19 pandemic relates to donated Personal Protection

Equipment (PPE) from the DHSC, this has been recognised as notional expenditure of £7.07m (2020/21:

£28.123m) in note 3.  This cost has been funded by the notional income detailed in note 2.1.

1.10 Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition

Property, plant and equipment is capitalised if:-

● It is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;

● It is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential will be supplied to, the Trust or

the Group;

● It is expected to be used for more than one financial year;

● The cost of the item can be measured reliably; and

● The item has a cost of at least £5,000; or

● Collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have a cost of more than

£250, where the assets are functionally interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are

anticipated to have simultaneous disposal dates, and are under single managerial control; or

● Items form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, ward, unit, project or service,

irrespective of their individual or collective cost.

Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly different

asset lives, the components are grouped into categories based on similar asset lives, and the groups

(categories) are treated as separate assets and depreciated over their own individual useful economic lives.

Measurement

Valuation

All property, plant and equipment is measured initially at cost, representing the cost directly attributable to

acquiring or constructing the asset and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable

of operating in the manner intended by management. All assets held for their service potential are measured

subsequently at current value in existing use. 

Land and buildings used for the Trust’s services are stated in the Statement of Financial Position at their

revalued amounts, being the current value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses. Revaluations are undertaken with sufficient regularity to ensure that

carrying amounts are not materially different to those that would be determined at the end of the reporting

period. Current values are determined as follows:
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Land is valued on an alternate site basis using market value for existing use. The area of this alternate site

is of sufficient size for the optimally designed building using the optimal site method referred to below.

Specialised operational buildings are held at depreciated replacement cost and are measured on a modern

equivalent asset basis. In agreement with the District Valuer, the NHS Foundation Trust has applied an

‘optimal site’ valuation which recognises any efficiencies that could be obtained if the site were to be rebuilt,

whilst allowing the current level of service provision to be maintained. The valuation of buildings managed

and maintained by the Trust's PFI partner exclude VAT. Operational buildings are considered for

impairment. 

Property, Plant and Equipment assets are tested for impairment to ensure the carrying value does not

exceed the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to

sell and its value in use.

Properties in the course of construction for service or administration purposes are carried at cost, less any

impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees but not borrowing costs, which are recognised as

expenses immediately, as allowed by IAS 23 for assets held at current value in existing use. Assets are

revalued, and depreciation commences, when they are brought into use.

Equipment assets are carried at Depreciated Historic Cost, as this is not considered to be materially

different from current value in existing use. 

Subsequent Expenditure

Where subsequent expenditure enhances an asset beyond its original specification, and it is probable that

additional future economic benefits or service potential will flow to the Trust and the Group, the directly

attributable cost is capitalised. Where subsequent expenditure restores the asset to a specification

appropriate for its economic life, the expenditure is treated as a revenue expense.

Revaluation gains and losses

An increase arising on revaluation is taken to the Revaluation Reserve, except when it reverses an

impairment for the same asset previously recognised in expenditure, in which case it is credited to the

Statement of Comprehensive Income (SoCI), to the extent of the decrease previously charged there. A

revaluation decrease is recognised as an Impairment charged to the Revaluation Reserve to the extent that

there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to operating expenditure. Gains and losses

recognised in the Revaluation Reserve are reported as "Other Comprehensive Income" in the SoCI.

Impairments

In accordance with the GAM, impairments which are due to a loss of economic benefits or service potential

in the asset are also charged to operating expenses. A compensating transfer is made from the

Revaluation Reserve to the Income and Expenditure Reserve of an amount equal to the lower of:-

(i) The impairment charged to operating expenses; or

(ii) The balance in the Revaluation Reserve attributable to that asset before the impairment.

An impairment which arises from a clear consumption of economic benefit or service potential is reversed

when, and to the extent that, the circumstances which gave rise to the loss are themselves reversed.

Where, at the time of the original impairment, a transfer was made from the Revaluation Reserve to the

Income and Expenditure Reserve, an amount is transferred back to the Revaluation Reserve when the

impairment reversal is recognised. 

Other impairments are treated as revaluation losses, and reversals of "other impairments" as revaluation

gains.
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1.11 Intangible Assets

Recognition

Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance, which are capable of sale

separately from the rest of the Trust’s and the Group's business, or which arise from contractual or other

legal rights. They are recognised only when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or

service potential be provided to, the Trust and the Group; where the cost of the asset can be measured

reliably; and where the cost is at least £5,000.  

Expenditure on research; internally-generated goodwill; brands; mastheads; publishing titles; customer lists

and similar items are not capitalised: they are recognised as Operating Expenses in the period in which they

are incurred.

Expenditure on development is only capitalised where:- 

- the project is technically feasible to the point of completion, and will create an Intangible Asset; 

- the Trust and the Group intend to complete the asset and sell or use it; 

- the Trust and the Group have the ability to sell or use the asset;

- the economic or service delivery benefits can be demonstrated; 

- the Trust and the Group have adequate resources to complete the development; 

- and the development costs can be reliably measured.

Software

Software which is integral to the operation of hardware, for example an operating system, is capitalised as

part of the relevant item of property, plant and equipment. Software which is not integral to the operation of

hardware, for example application software, is capitalised as an Intangible Asset. 

Measurement

Intangible Assets are recognised initially at cost, comprising all directly attributable costs needed to create,

produce and prepare the asset to the point at which it is capable of operating in the manner intended by

management. Subsequently, Intangible Assets are measured at current value in existing use. Revaluation

Gains, Losses and Impairments are treated in the same manner as for Property, Plant and Equipment (see

Note 1.10). The amount initially recognised for internally-generated Intangible Assets is the sum of the

expenditure incurred from the date when the criteria above are initially met. Where no internally-generated

Intangible Asset can be identified, the expenditure in question is written off through the Statement of

Comprehensive Income in the period in which it is incurred. Internally-developed software is held at Historic

Cost to reflect the opposing effects of increases in development costs, versus technological advances.

1.12 Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairments

Freehold land is not depreciated, as it is considered to have an indefinite life. 

Property, Plant and Equipment which has been reclassified as "Held for Sale" ceases to be depreciated

upon the reclassification. Assets in the course of construction are not depreciated until the asset is brought

into use.

Otherwise, depreciation and amortisation are charged to write off the cost or valuation, less any residual

value, of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Non-Current Assets, over their estimated useful

lives, in a manner which reflects the consumption of economic benefits or service potential of the assets.

The estimated useful life of an asset is the period over which the Trust and the Group expect to obtain

economic benefits or service potential from the asset. This life is specific to the Trust and the Group, and

may be shorter than the physical life of the asset itself. Estimated useful lives and residual values are

reviewed periodically, with the effect of any changes being recognised on a prospective basis. Note 10.3 to

these Accounts gives details of the Useful Economic Lives of the Trust's and the Group's Property, Plant

and Equipment assets. 
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Where assets are non-operational for a short period while management decide on their future use, they are

retained at their current valuation, although depreciation ceases from the date they are taken out of use.

Finance leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the useful economic life or the lease term, unless

the Trust and the Group expect to acquire an asset at the end of its lease term, in which it is depreciated in

the same manner as owned assets above.

If there has been an impairment loss, the asset is written down to its recoverable amount, with the loss

charged to the Revaluation Reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the Reserve for the asset and,

thereafter, to expenditure. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the

asset is increased to the revised estimate of the recoverable amount, but capped at the amount which

would have been determined had there been no initial impairment loss. The reversal of the impairment loss

is credited to expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously charged there, and thereafter to the

Revaluation Reserve.

If there has been an impairment loss on assets in the course of construction for the Estates and major IT

projects (HIVE EPR) they will be written down to their recoverable amount. All other IT assets in the course

of construction will be reviewed for imparirment at such time as they are brought into use.

1.13 Donated Assets

Donated Non-Current Assets are capitalised at their fair value on receipt, with the corresponding receipt

credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income, in accordance with the principles of IAS 20, unless the

donor has imposed a condition that the future economic benefits embodied in the donation are to be

consumed in a manner specified by them. In this case, the donation is deferred within liabilities (note 17),

and carried forward to future financial years, to the extent that the condition has not yet been met. Donated

Assets are subsequently valued, depreciated and impaired as described above for purchased assets.

1.14 Government and Other Grants 

Government Grants are grants from Government bodies, other than income from NHS bodies for the

provision of services. Revenue Grants are reported through the Statement of Comprehensive Income to

match the expenditure incurred. Capital Granted Assets are treated in the same manner as Donated Assets

(as outlined above), and in accordance with the principles of IAS 20.

In 2020/21 this included assets donated to the trust by the Department of Health and Social Care as part of

the response to the coronavirus pandemic. As defined in the GAM, the trust applies the principle of donated

asset accounting to assets that the trust controls and is obtaining economic benefits from at the year end.

There have been no equivalent transaction in 2021/22.

Note 2.1 and Note 10.1 details the £0.683m of donated / granted equipment from DHSC for COVID

response in 2021/22 (£1.032m 2020/21).  The majority of this equipment is ventilators for use in the Trust.

1.15 Surplus Non-Current Assets - Held for Sale or to be Scrapped or Demolished

A Non-Current Asset which is surplus, with no plan to bring it back into use, is valued at Fair Value under

IFRS 13, if it does not meet the requirements of IAS 40 in respect of investment properties, or IFRS 5 in

respect of non-current assets held for sale.

In general, the following conditions must be met at the Statement of Financial Position date, for an asset to

be classified as Held for Sale:-

● Management is committed to a plan to sell;
● The asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition;

● The sale is highly probable; and

● The asset is being actively marketed for sale at a price reasonable in relation to its Fair Value.

Following reclassification, Assets Held for Sale are measured at the lower of their existing carrying amount,

and their "Fair Value less costs to sell". Assets are derecognised when all material sale contract conditions

are met.

16



Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Accounts 2021/2022

Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment that is to be scrapped or demolished does not qualify for recognition as Held

for Sale. Instead, it is retained as an operational asset and its economic life is adjusted. Such assets are

derecognised when they are scrapped or demolished.

1.16 Leases

The Trust considers the leases it has entered into in line with IAS 17 Leases. Under IAS 17, leases of

property, plant and equipment are classified as either finance leases or operating leases, according to their

characteristics as set out in the standard. As well as this, in applying IFRIC 4 - determining whether an

arrangement contains a lease, collectively significant rental arrangements that do not have the legal status

of a lease but convey the right to use an asset for payment are accounted for under the Trust’s lease policy,

where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of specific assets.

Finance leases

The Trust assesses the terms of each individual lease agreement to determine whether substantially all the

risks and rewards of ownership are borne by the Trust.

Where substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of a leased asset are borne by the Trust or the

Group, the asset is recorded as Property, Plant and Equipment, and a corresponding liability is recorded.

The value at which both the asset and the liability are recognised is the lower of the Fair Value of the asset

or the present value of the minimum lease payments, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease.

The implicit interest rate is that which produces a constant periodic rate of return on the outstanding liability.

The asset and liability are recognised at the commencement of the lease. Thereafter the asset is

accounted for as an item of Property, Plant and Equipment.

The annual rental is split between the repayment of the liability and a finance cost. This annual finance cost

is calculated by applying the implicit interest rate to the outstanding liability, and is charged to finance costs

in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The lease liability, is de-recognised when the arrangement is

discharged or cancelled, or when it expires.

Operating Leases

Leases other than Finance Leases are regarded as Operating Leases, and the rentals are charged to

operating expenses on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Operating lease incentives received

are treated as a reduction to the lease rentals, and reflected in operating expenses over the life of the lease. 

Leases of Land and Buildings

Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land component is separated from the building component, and

the classification for each is assessed separately. Leases of land are treated as Operating Leases.

1.17 Private Finance Initiative (PFI) Transactions

The Treasury has determined that public bodies shall account for infrastructure PFI schemes, where the

public body controls the use of the infrastructure and the residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of

the arrangement, as service concession arrangements, following the principles and requirements of IFRIC

12. Therefore, in accordance with IAS 17, the Trust and the Group recognise their PFI asset as an item of

Property, Plant and Equipment, together with a corresponding finance lease liability to pay for it.
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The annual PFI unitary payment is separated into the following component parts, using appropriate

estimation techniques where necessary:-

a)    Payment for the fair value of services received - recognised in operating expenses;

b)    Payment for the PFI asset, including finance costs (charged to the Statement of Comprehensive

Income) and, if applicable, prepayments for assets not yet in operational use; and

c)    Payment for the replacement of components of the asset during the contract, known as "lifecycle

replacement".

Services Received

The fair value of services received in the year is recorded under the relevant expenditure headings within

operating expenses.

PFI Assets

The Trust's PFI assets are recognised as Property, Plant and Equipment when they come into use. The

assets are measured initially at fair value in accordance with the principles of IAS 17. Subsequently, the

assets are measured at current value, which is kept up to date in accordance with the Trust’s and the

Group's approach for each relevant class of asset, in accordance with the principles of IAS 16.

PFI Liability

A PFI liability is recognised at the same time as the PFI assets are recognised. It is measured initially at the

same amount as the current value of the PFI assets, and is subsequently measured as a Finance Lease

Liability in accordance with IAS 17. 

The element of the annual Unitary Payment which is allocated as a Finance Lease Rental is applied to meet

the annual finance cost, and to repay the lease liability over the contract term. 

An element of the annual unitary payment increase due to cumulative indexation is allocated to the finance

lease, in accordance with IAS 17. This amount is not included in the minimum lease payments, but is

instead treated as contingent rent, and is expensed as incurred. In substance, this amount is a finance cost

in respect of the liability, and is therefore disclosed as a contingent finance cost in the Statement of

Comprehensive Income.

Lifecycle Replacement

An element of the annual unitary payment is allocated to lifecycle replacement, and is pre-determined for

each year of the contract, by reference to the operator’s planned programme of lifecycle replacement.

1.18 Inventories

Inventories (Stocks) are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, with the exception of :-  

a) Pharmacy inventories - these are valued at average cost, and

b) Inventories recorded and controlled via the Materials Management System, these are valued at current

cost.  

This is considered to be a reasonable approximation to net realisable value due to the high turnover of

stocks.

In 2021/22 and 2020/21, the Trust received inventories including personal protective equipment (PPE) from

the Department of Health and Social Care at nil cost. In line with the GAM and applying the principles of the

IFRS Conceptual Framework, the Trust has accounted for the receipt of these inventories at a deemed

cost, reflecting the best available approximation of an imputed market value for the transaction based on

the cost of acquisition by the Department. 
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1.19 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is defined as cash in hand, and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on

notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments which mature in 3 months or less from

the date of acquisition, and which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of

change in value.  

1.20 Contingencies

A Contingent Asset is a possible asset which arises from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed

by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of

the Trust or the Group. Contingent Assets are not recognised in the Statement of Financial Position, but are

disclosed at Note 21.1 to these Accounts, where an inflow of economic benefits is possible.  

Contingent Liabilities are similarly not recognised in the Statement of Financial Position but, as with

Contingent Assets above, are disclosed in Note 21.1 to these Accounts, unless the probability of a transfer

of economic benefits is remote. Contingent Liabilities are defined as:-

a) Possible obligations arising from past events, whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of

one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the Trust's or the Group's control; or

b) Present obligations arising from past events, but for which it is not probable that a transfer of economic

benefits will arise, or for which the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Where the time value of money is material, Contingencies are disclosed at their present value.

1.21 Provisions

The Trust and the Group provide for legal or constructive obligations which are of uncertain timing or amount

at the Statement of Financial Position date, on the basis of the best possible reliable estimate of the

expenditure and when it is considered probable that there will be a future outflow of resources required to

settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is significant, the estimated risk-adjusted

cash flows are discounted using one or more of the Discount Rates published and mandated by HM

Treasury. 

In 2021/2022 the only such Discount Rate applicable to the Trust or the Group was minus 1.3%

(2020/2021:minus 0.95%) for Post Employment Benefits - specifically the costs of Pensions and Injury

Benefits, for which the Trust and the Group are obliged to pay.

NHS Resolution (NHSR) operates a risk pooling scheme (the Clinical Negligence Scheme for Trusts or

CNST), under which the Trust and the Group pay an annual contribution to the NHSR which, in return,

settles all Clinical Negligence Claims. Although NHSR is administratively responsible for all Clinical

Negligence cases, the legal liability remains with the Trust and the Group. The total value of Clinical

Negligence provisions carried in its Accounts by the NHSR, on behalf of the Trust and the Group, is

disclosed at Note 20.2.

1.22 Non-Clinical Risk Pooling

The Trust and the Group participate in the Property Expenses Scheme, and the Liabilities to Third Parties

Scheme. Both are risk pooling schemes under which the Trust and the Group pay an annual contribution to

the NHSR, and in return receive assistance with the costs of claims arising. The annual membership

contributions, and any ‘excesses’ payable in respect of particular claims, are charged to operating expenses

as and when the liability to make payment arises. 

Other commercial insurance held by the Trust and the Group includes that for (building) contract works,

motor vehicles, personal accidents, and group travel (for clinical staff required to work off-site, as well as

overseas travel). The annual premium and any excesses payable are charged to Operating Expenses as

and when the liability arises.
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1.23 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities arise where the Trust or Group is party to the contractual provisions

of a financial instrument, and as a result has a legal right to receive or a legal obligation to pay cash or

another financial instrument. The GAM expands the definition of a contract to include legislation and

regulations which give rise to arrangements that in all other respects would be a financial instrument and do

not give rise to transactions classified as a tax by Office of National Statistics.

This includes the purchase or sale of non-financial items (such as goods or services), which are entered

into in accordance with the Trust’s normal purchase, sale or usage requirements and are recognised when,

and to the extent which, performance occurs, ie, when receipt or delivery of the goods or services is made.

Classification and Measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value plus or minus directly attributable

transaction costs except where the asset or liability is not measured at fair value through profit and loss.

Fair value is taken as the transaction price, or otherwise determined by reference to quoted market prices

or valuation techniques.

Financial assets are classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through profit or loss

or fair value through other comprehensive income. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost are those held with the objective of collecting

contractual cash flows and where cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest. This includes

cash equivalents, contract and other receivables, trade and other payables, rights and obligations under

lease arrangements and loans receivable and payable. 

After initial recognition, these financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using

the effective interest method less any impairment (for financial assets). The effective interest rate is the rate

that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial

asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset or to the amortised cost of a

financial liability.

Interest revenue or expense is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount

of a financial asset or amortised cost of a financial liability and recognised in the Statement of

Comprehensive Income and a financing income or expense. In the case of loans held from the Department

of Health and Social Care, the effective interest rate is the nominal rate of interest charged on the loan. In

the current financial year the interest revenue is minimal as HM Treasury are no longer paying interest on

the funds held in the Government Bank Accounts where the majority of the Trust's cash is deposited.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss are those that are not otherwise measured at

amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income. Movements in the fair value of

financial assets and liabilities in this category are recognised as gains or losses in the Statement of

Comprehensive income. 
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The Trust holds equity investments as financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss.  For

those equity investments that are not quoted, cost has been applied as an appropriate estimate of fair value

on the basis that there is a wide range of possible fair value measurements for these unquoted investments

- as such, cost is the best and most reliable estimate of fair value of the investments in the absence of a

quoted market value.  For those investments that are quoted, the fair value of the equity investment is the

share price at the balance sheet date.

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income where business model

objectives are met by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and where the cash

flows are solely payments of principal and interest. Movements in the fair value of financial assets in this

category are recognised as gains or losses in other comprehensive income except for impairment losses.

On derecognition, cumulative gains and losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are

reclassified from equity to profit and loss, except where the Trust elected to measure an equity instrument in

this category on initial recognition.   

The Trust has designated the equity investments that are held by the Charity as financial assets held at fair

value through other comprehensive income.

Impairment of Financial Assets

For all financial assets measured at amortised cost including lease receivables, contract receivables and

contract assets or assets measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income, the Trust

recognises an allowance for expected credit losses. 

The Trust adopts the simplified approach to impairment for contract and other receivables, contract assets

and lease receivables, measuring expected losses as at an amount equal to lifetime expected losses. For

other financial assets, the loss allowance is initially measured at an amount equal to 12-month expected

credit losses (stage 1) and subsequently at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses if the credit

risk assessed for the financial asset significantly increases (stage 2).

For financial assets that have become credit impaired since initial recognition (stage 3), expected credit

losses at the reporting date are measured as the difference between the asset’s gross carrying amount and

the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest

rate. 

Expected losses are charged to operating expenditure within the Statement of Comprehensive Income and

reduce the net carrying value of the financial asset in the Statement of Financial Position.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

All Financial Assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired,

or the Trust and the Group have transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial Liabilities are derecognised when the obligation is discharged or cancelled, or it expires.

1.24 Value Added Tax

Most of the activities of the Trust and the Group are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax

does not apply, and input tax on purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant

expenditure category, or included in the capitalised purchase cost of Non-Current Assets. Where output tax

is charged or input tax is recoverable, the transactions in question are recorded net of VAT in these

financial statements and this applies to assets and liabilities as well as expenses.

1.25 Foreign Currencies

The Trust's and the Group's functional and presentational currency is Sterling. The Trust and the Group do

not record or trade in any transactions denominated in a foreign currency. 
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1.26 Third Party Assets

Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not recognised as assets in

these financial statements, since the Trust and the Group have no beneficial interest in them. However,

details of Third Party Assets held by the Trust and the Group are given in Note 15, in accordance with the

requirements of the Treasury's Financial Reporting Manual (FReM).

1.27 Public Dividend Capital  

Public Dividend Capital (PDC) represents Taxpayers’ Equity in the Trust and the Group. PDC is recorded at

the value received. As PDC is issued under legislation rather than under contract, it is not treated as an

Equity Financial Instrument within the meaning of IAS 32. The Secretary of State can issue new PDC to, and

require repayments of PDC from, the Trust. PDC is recorded at the value received.

A charge reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the Trust, is payable as Public Dividend Capital dividend.

The charge is calculated at the rate set by HM Treasury (currently 3.5%) on the average relevant net assets

of the Trust during the financial year.  Relevant net assets are calculated as:-

● the average of the opening and closing value of all liabilities and assets (excluding donated assets, COVID

19 assets COVID 19 PDC, HIP2 Assets under construction, Healthier Together assetsand any PDC

dividend balance receivable or payable).

● less the average daily net cash balances held with the Government Banking Service (excluding balances

held in GBS accounts that relate to short-term working capital facility).

● less the bonus Provider Sustainability Fund (PSF), (previously Sustainability and Transformation Funding)

Receivable.

In accordance with the requirements laid down by the Department of Health and Social Care (as the issuer

of PDC), the dividend for the year is calculated on the actual average relevant net assets as set out in the

'pre-audit' version of the annual accounts. The dividend thus calculated is not revised should any

adjustment to net assets occur as a result of the audit of the annual accounts.

Where the average of Net Relevant Assets is negative, no Dividend will be payable.

1.28 Losses and Special Payments

Losses and Special Payments are items which Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed

funds for the Health Service, or passed legislation. By their nature, they are items which ideally should not

arise. They are therefore subject to special control procedures compared with the generality of payments.

They are divided into different categories, which govern the way in which individual cases are handled.

Losses and Special Payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in operating expenditure,

Note 3 in these financial statements, on an accruals basis. However Note 28 to these financial statements,

disclosing the Trust's and the Group's Losses and Special Payments, is compiled directly from the Losses

and Compensations Register, which reports financial amounts on an accruals basis, with the exception of

provisions for future losses.

1.29 Corporation Tax

Under s519A ICTA 1988 Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust is regarded as a Health Service

body, and is therefore exempt from taxation on its Income and Capital Gains. Section 148 of the 2004

Finance Act provided the Treasury with powers to disapply this exemption. Accordingly the Trust and the

Group are potentially within the scope of Corporation Tax in respect of activities which are not related to, or

ancillary to, the provision of healthcare, and where the profits exceed £50,000 per annum. 

Activities such as staff and patient car parking and sales of food are considered to be ancillary to the core

healthcare objectives of the Trust and the Group (and not entrepreneurial), and therefore not subject to

Corporation Tax. 

22



Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Accounts 2021/2022

Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

1.30 Accounting Standards Which Have Been Issued But Have Not Been Adopted

Change Published Financial Year for Which the Change 

First Applies

Impact 

IFRS 16 Leases

HM Treasury have revised the 

implementation date for UK public 

sector to 1 April 2022

The exact impact of applying the standard in 2022/23 

is being worked through.  It is currently estimated 

that the adoption of the standard will require the 

recognition of c.£239m Right of Use Assets (along 

with a corresponding lease liability of the same 

value) at 1st April 2022. Due to the lack of guidance, 

the impact of IFRS 16 on the Trust's PFI liablities 

cannot be quantified.

IFRS 17 Insurance 

Contracts

Application required for accounting 

periods beginning on or after 1 January 

2023: early adoption is not permitted.

Work has not yet started to understand the impact of 

this standard across the NHS.  At this point in time, 

IFRS 17 is not expected to have any significant 

impact on the financial results of the Trust. 

There are no Accounting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) or the

International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), which are applicable to the Trust and/or the

Group which have been adopted by the Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual (GAM), but

which have not been adopted within these Accounts. However, the following Standards have been issued or

amended by the IASB or IFRIC up to the date of publication of the GAM, but have not yet been adopted by the GAM,

and therefore also not yet adopted by the Trust and/or the Group:- 

IFRS 16 Leases will replace IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease and other

interpretations and is applicable in the public sector for periods beginning 1 April 2022.  The standard provides a

single accounting model for lessees, recognising a right of use asset and obligation in the statement of financial

position for all leases. The standard also requires the remeasurement of lease liabilities after the commencement of

the lease term. For lessors, the distinction between operating and finance leases will remain and the accounting will

be largely unchanged.

IFRS 16 changes the definition of a lease compared to IAS 17 and IFRIC 4. The Trust will apply this definition to new

leases only and will grandfather its assessments made under the old standards of whether existing contracts contain a

lease.

On transition to IFRS 16 on 1 April 2022, the Trust will apply the standard retrospectively with the cumulative effect of

initially applying the standard recognised in the income and expenditure reserve at that date. For existing operating

leases with a remaining lease term of more than 12 months and an underlying asset value of at least £5,000, a lease

liability will be recognised equal to the value of remaining lease payments discounted at the Trust’s incremental

borrowing rate. The Trust’s incremental borrowing rate will be a rate defined by HM Treasury. Currently this rate is

1.27% but this may change between now and adoption of the standard. The related right of use asset will be

measured equal to the liability adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease payments. For existing peppercorn leases

not classified as finance leases, a right of use asset will be measured at current value in existing use or fair value. The

difference between the asset value and the calculated lease liability will be recognised in the income and expenditure

reserve on transition.

For leases commencing in 2022/2023, the Trust will not recognise a right of use asset or lease liability for short term

leases (less than or equal to 12 months) or for leases of low value assets (less than £5,000).  Right of use assets will

be subsequently measured on a basis consistent with owned assets and depreciated over the length of the lease

term. 

HM Treasury revised the implementation date for IFRS 16 in the UK public sector to 1 April 2022 in November 2020.

The Trust is working to reassess lease calculations and confirm lease activity up to and including 31 March 2022, and

as such cannot give a definitive view of the impact of the adoption of the new accounting standard, but the current

best estimate is that the trust will recognise right of use assets valued at £132m for property and £107m for equipment

(total £239m) at 1st April 2022.
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1.31 Accounting Standards Issued Which Have Been Adopted Early

No new accounting standards or revisions to existing standards have been early adopted in 2021/2022 by

the Trust or the Group.

1.32 Operating Segments

Under IFRS 8, the Trust and the Group are required to disclose financial information across significant

Operating Segments, which reflect the way the management runs the organisation. A significant segment is

one which:-

i) Represents 10% or more of the income or expenditure of the entity; or 

ii) Has a surplus or deficit which is 10% or more of the greater, in absolute amount, of the combined surplus

of all segments reporting a surplus, or the combined deficit of all segments reporting a deficit; or

iii) Has assets of 10% or more of the combined assets of all Operating Segments.

Significant central management and support services underpin all Trust activities, and the majority of

activities are similar in nature. Research and Training (both less than 10% of turnover) similarly support the

Trust's activities (with Training being integral to the provision of healthcare). The Trust therefore considers

itself to operate with one segment, being the provision of healthcare services. This view is further

supported by the fact that routine Finance Reports are presented to the Board on a Trust-wide basis,

analysed by Pay, Non-Pay and Capital.

With regard to the Trust's subsidiary, the Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust Charity, for Group

Accounting purposes the charity is considered to be a separate operating segment. The financial results of

the Charity are separately disclosed in Note 29.4 to these financial statements, and these statements meet

the IFRS 8 requirements for operating segment disclosures.

1.33 Transfers of Functions to and From Other NHS Bodies: Transfers by Absorption

For functions which were transferred to the Trust and/or the Group from another NHS body, the assets and

liabilities transferred were recognised in these financial statements as at the date of transfer. The assets

and liabilities were not adjusted to Fair Value prior to recognition. The net gain or loss arising,

corresponding to the net assets or liabilities transferred, was recognised within the Statement of

Comprehensive Income under "Gain/(Loss) From Transfers by Absorption". Any adjustments required to

align acquired assets or liabilities to the Trust's and the Group's Accounting Policies were applied after

initial recognition, and taken directly to Taxpayers' Equity.

For Non-Current Assets transferred to the Trust and the Group from other NHS bodies, the cost and

accumulated depreciation/amortisation balances, from the transferring entity's financial statements, were

preserved on recognition in the Trust's and the Group's statements. Where the transferring body

recognised Revaluation Reserve balances attributable to the assets in question, the Trust and the Group

made a transfer from their Income and Expenditure Reserve, to the Revaluation Reserve, to maintain

transparency within Public Sector Accounts. 

For functions which the Trust or the Group transferred to another NHS body, the assets and liabilities

transferred were derecognised from the financial statements as at the date of transfer. The net loss or gain,

corresponding to the net assets or liabilities transferred, was recognised as Non-Operating Expenses or

Income, and as above was titled a Gain or Loss from Transfer by Absorption, in the Statement of

Comprehensive Income. Any Revaluation Reserve balances attributable to assets derecognised were

transferred to the Income and Expenditure Reserve.

The transfer relating to North Manchester is detailed further in the accounts in note 2.7.
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2

2.1 Income from patient care activities (by nature)

Trust Group Trust Group

2021/22 2021/22 2020/21 2020/21

Income from Patient Care Activities £000 £000 £000 £000 

Block contract / system envelope income 1,710,636 1,710,636 1,318,575 1,318,575 

High cost drugs income from commissioners 236,564 236,564 181,070 181,070 

Other NHS clinical income 2,218 2,218 9,318 9,318 

Community Services Income 164,438 164,438 147,190 147,190 

Elective Recovery Funding (a) 13,434 13,434 - - 

Private Patient Income 3,313 3,313 2,093 2,093 

Additional pension contribution (c) 53,631 53,631 43,929 43,929 

Other Clinical Income (d) 6,325 6,325 27,207 27,207 

Total income from Patient Care Activities 2,190,559 2,190,559 1,729,382 1,729,382 

Other Operating Income
Research and Development 75,219 75,219 62,579 62,579 

Education and Training 83,367 83,367 66,880 66,880 

Non-Patient Care Services to Other Bodies 45,421 45,421 30,759 30,759 

Reimbursement and top up Funding (b) 7,403 7,403 174,079 174,079 

Income in respect of employee benefits 

accounted on a gross basis 8,741 8,741 8,197 8,197 

Notional Income from Apprentiship  Levy 3,041 3,041 2,681 2,681 

Receipt of capital grants and donations 5,994 3,178 4,289 - 

Donated Equipment from DHSC for COVID 

response 683 683 1,032 1,032 

Charitable and Other Contributions to 

Expenditure 448 448 460 460 

Rental revenue from operating leases 1,752 1,752 1,816 1,816 

Contributions to expenditure - receipt of 

equipment donated from DHSC for COVID 

response below capitalisation threshold (e) 6,933 6,933 28,123 28,123 

Other Income (f) 43,304 43,304 41,962 41,962 

Other - Charity - 4,662 - 9,268 

Total other operating income 282,305 284,151 422,856 427,835 

Of which:

Related to continuing operations 282,305 284,151 422,856 427,835 

Related to discontinued operations - - - - 

Explanatory Notes

2021/2022 2021/2022 2020/2021 2020/2021

Trust Group Trust Group

Other Income £000 £000 £000 £000

Other Income 27,625 27,625 29,819 29,819

Clinical Excellence Awards 5,162 5,162 4,359 4,359

Car Parking 1,595 1,595 400 400

Property Rentals 5,411 5,411 5,201 5,201

Staff accommodation rental 87 87 305 305

Crèche Services 1,036 1,036 915 915

Clinical Tests 547 547 274 274

Staff contributions to employee benefit schemes 0 0 0 0

Estates Recharges 161 161 269 269

Catering 1,342 1,342 66 66

Pharmacy Sales 338 338 354 354

Total Other Income 43,304 43,304 41,962 41,962

Operating income from patient care activities

The Trust is required by its Commissioners to provide services which ensure service users have continued access

to vital NHS services, known as Commissioner Requested Services (CRS). CRS in 2021/22 amounted to £2.125

billion or 97% of Income from Activities (2020/2021: £1.656 billion and 96%). CRS is arrived at by excluding

Provider Sustainability Fund income (previously Sustainability and Transformation Funding), Private Patient Income

and Other Clinical Income from Total Income Received from Activities.      

Commissioner Requested Services

(f) Within Other Operating Income the following items are included in Other Income: 

(a) The Elective Recovery Fund was created for 2021/22 to support NHS providers in starting to address the

backlog in elective care caused by the response required by the Covid 19 Pandemic.

(b) The top-up funding was introduced to support the finance regime allocations in recognition of increased costs as

a consequence of COVID-19. This principally related to the period 1st April 2020 to 30th September 2020.

Subsequently the income reduced and related to the runnning costs of the Nightingale Northwest Hospital and the

additional costs of the vaccination effort. The Nightingale Hospital closed and was decommisioned in April 2021

(c) The Trust has been notified of funding to cover the 6.3% increased cost of the Employer Pensions Contribution.

This is paid centrally by NHS England, for accounting purposes it is recognised as Income and Expenditure (see

note 5) in the Trust accounts.

(d) Other clinical income in 2020/21 included funding due from NHS England relating to the cost of Annual Leave

due to the impact of Covid-19 and staff being unable to take their allocation during the financial year. This is not

expected in 2021/22.

(e) This is income to the Trust for the Protection Personal Equipment (PPE) which the Trust received directly from

DHSC throughout the financial year providing PPE directly to the Trust during the COVID-19 pandemic, note 4

details the expenditure relating to this cost.
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2.2 Trust and 

Group

Trust and 

Group

2021/2022 2020/2021

£000 £000

Rents recognised as income during the period 1,752 1,816

Total 1,752 1,816

Future minimum lease payments due

not later than one year 1,762 1,598

3,636 3,878

later than five years 6,220 4,368

Total 11,618 9,844

2.3 Income from patient care activities (by source) Trust Group Trust Group

2021/22 2021/22 2020/21 2020/21

Income from patient care activities received from: £000 £000 £000 £000 

NHS England 885,484 885,484 754,143 754,143 

Clinical commissioning groups 1,253,519 1,253,519 919,815 919,815 

Other NHS providers 2,216 2,216 408 408 

NHS other - - 374 374 

Local authorities 39,700 39,700 38,617 38,617 

Non-NHS: private patients 3,313 3,313 2,093 2,093 

Non-NHS: overseas patients (chargeable to patient) 1,699 1,699 1,139 1,139 

Injury cost recovery scheme 4,626 4,626 4,256 4,256 

Non NHS: other 2 2 8,537 8,537 

Total income from activities 2,190,559 2,190,559 1,729,382 1,729,382 

2.4 Overseas visitors (relating to patients charged directly by the provider)

2021/22 2020/21

£000 £000 

Income recognised this year 1,699 1,139 

Cash payments received in-year 309 265 

126 384 

Amounts written off in-year* 1,803 1,213 

later than one year and not later than five years

Operating Lease Income

Amounts added to provision for impairment of receivables 

* Write-offs have been undertaken following extensive debt collection exercises and review of the probability of recovery.

Overseas tariff guidance is followed, whereby CCGs underwrite 50% of the invoice value (75% of standard tariff).
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2.5 Additional information on contract revenue (IFRS 15) recognised in the period

2021/22 2020/21

£000 £000 

Revenue recognised in the reporting period that was included in within

contract liabilities at the previous period end 21,145 12,329 

2.6 Revenue not recognised this year
Revenue from contracts entered into as at the period end expected to be 

recognised:

31 March 

2022 31 March 2021

£000 £000 

- within one year 47,330 18,435

- after one year not later than five years 4,150 3,439

- after five years
Total revenue allocated to remaining performance obligations 51,480 21,874

2.7 Transfers by absorption

North Manchester General Hospital Transaction

The Trust did not pay any consideration in relation to this transfer.

1 April 2021
£000

Non-Current Assets

Land 5,976

Buildings (excl dwellings) 58,375

Dwellings 485

Plant and Machinery 14,815

Transport Equipment 5

Information technology 1,840

Furniture and Fittings 219
All other non-current receivables 2,301

Allowance for impairment of contract receivables and assets (405)

Current Assets
All other current receivables 3,564

Allowance for impairment of contract receivables and assets (173)
Inventory of consumables 936
Cash and Cash Equivalents 6,311

Current Liabilities

Trade payables (291)

Accruals (2,690)

Other liabilities (320)

Loans and Borrowings (1,448)

Provisions (6,347)

Non Current Liabilities

Loans and Borrowings (17,664)

Gain on Absorption 65,489

The Trust has exercised the practical expedients permitted by IFRS 15 paragraph 121 in preparing this 

disclosure. Revenue from:-.

(i) contracts with an expected duration of one year or less and

(ii) contracts where the Trust recognises revenue directly corresponding to work done to date is not 

disclosed.

In addition to the gain on absorption above, there were additional transfers of non-current assets of

£3,809k for consideration of Nil in transactions with other NHS Bodies. This reduces the net gain for the

trust to £61,680k.

On the 1st April 2021, the Trust formally acquired the North Manchester General Hospital site, services

and associated Charitable Fund from Pennine Acute NHS Foundation Trust, following the approval of the

transaction business case by NHS England and NHS Improvement.

The Financial impact of the transaction includes the recognition of the land, buildings and equipment based 

at the North Manchester site and used to provide the services for which the Trust is now responsible, plus

those working capital balances required to support the ongoing running of these services. The table below

shows the nature and net book value of the assets and liabilities which transfered to the trust as at 1st April

2021.

In accordance with the GAM this transaction is recorded as a Transfer by absorption with the resulting gain

shown as a gain on absorption. Throughout the accounts asset and liability values will show the impact of

this transfer under a separate line where appropriate. The overall value of the net asset represented by the

hospital is also recorded as a gain by absorption in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and

represents a one off adjustment to the Trust's reserves.

The net book value of the Information Technology assets shown above was subsequently adjusted

immediately after the transaction to reflect the difference between accounting policies of the two trusts, in

that MFT treat this kind of equipment as expenditure in year reflecting it's shorter life rather than adding to

Non-current Assets. This reduction in value was taken directly to the Income and expenditure reserve as

allowed by the GAM. This was the only accounting adjustment needed relating to the transfer and all other

accounting policies were aligned.

In addition to the above, the Group received charity balances of approximately £2m made up of

investments and cash which were transferred from the Pennine Acute NHS Foundation Trust charity to the

MFT charity as at 1st April 2021.
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3 Operating expenses Trust Group Trust Group

2021/22 2021/22 2020/21 2020/21

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Purchase of healthcare from NHS and DHSC bodies 46,048 46,048 14,659 14,659 

Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS and non-DHSC 

bodies 30,337 30,337 19,615 19,615 

Staff and executive directors costs * 1,429,228 1,429,228 1,206,235 1,206,235 

Remuneration of non-executive directors 231 231 230 230 

Supplies and services - clinical (excluding drugs 227,985 227,985 184,184 184,184 

Supplies and services - general 13,693 13,693 13,002 13,002 
Supplies and services – clinical: utilisation of 

consumables donated from DHSC group bodies for 

COVID response ** 7,070 7,070 28,123 28,123 

Drug costs (drugs inventory consumed and purchase 

of non-inventory drugs) 252,526 252,526 195,919 195,919 

Consultancy costs 3,299 3,299 6,958 6,958 

Establishment 18,526 18,526 10,841 10,841 

Premises - business rates collected by local 7,885 7,885 14,333 14,333 

Premises 49,012 49,012 64,928 64,928 

Transport (business travel only) 3,342 3,342 3,213 3,213 

Transport (including patient travel) 4,215 4,215 2,396 2,396 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 35,101 35,108 27,520 27,527 

Amortisation on intangible assets 805 805 1,140 1,140 

Net impairments 91,430 91,430 77,525 77,525 

Increase in provision for impairment of receivables 2,458 2,458 6,489 6,489 

Change in provisions discount rate(s) 276 276 392 392 

Fees payable to the external auditor

audit services- statutory audit 102 102 102 102 

Charitable fund audit - 11 - 11 

Internal audit costs - non-staff 33 33 221 221 

Clinical negligence 54,240 54,240 36,207 36,207 

Legal fees 1,334 1,334 1,687 1,687 

Insurance 792 792 496 496 

Research and development - staff costs 32,725 32,725 28,673 28,673 

Research and development - non-staff costs 41,112 41,112 35,320 35,320 

Education and training - non-staff costs 9,805 9,805 6,802 6,802 

Education and training - notional expenditure funded 3,041 3,041 2,681 2,681 

Rentals under operating leases ***** 17,479 17,479 17,057 17,057 

Redundancy - staff costs - - 65 65 

Redundancy - non-staff costs 508 508 2,063 2,063 

Charges to operating expenditure for on-SoFP IFRIC 

12 schemes (e.g. PFI / LIFT) 66,932 66,932 65,194 65,194 

Car parking & security 1,950 1,950 3,080 3,080 

Hospitality 17 17 25 25 

Other NHS charitable fund resources expended - 4,387 - 6,418 

Other *** 50,809 50,809 69,886 69,886 
Total 2,504,345 2,508,750 2,147,261 2,153,697 

Of which:

Related to continuing operations 2,504,345 2,508,750 2,147,261 2,153,697 

Related to discontinued operations - - - - 

Losses and special payments are reported in the expenditure categories to which they relate. These are also reported in Note

34, Losses and Special Payments. 

**** Other auditor remuneration (external auditor only) are payments for services received in addition to Statutory Audit services

and are set out in more detail in Note 5.2.

***** The Trust's Operating Expenses include payments made in respect of Operating Leases as set out in Note 6.

** This is expenditure is for the personal Protective Equipment which the Trust has received directly from DHSC during the

financial year to be used during the COVID pandemic. The cost of this has be funded as detailed in note 2.1 which provides

details of the income to pay for this cost.

* Further details for pay expenditure is included in Note 4.

***In 2021/22 Other costs £7.4m general provisions and £7.9m professional fees.
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4 Employee benefits (Trust and Group)

2021/22 2020/21

Total Total

£000 £000 

Salaries and wages 1,078,162 930,309 

Social security costs 100,980 83,516 

Apprenticeship levy 4,753 4,023 

Employer's contributions to NHS pensions 174,181 144,330 

Pension cost - other - 261 

Temporary staff (including agency) 109,166 76,743 
Total gross staff costs 1,467,242 1,239,182 

Of which

Costs capitalised as part of assets 5,289 4,209 

This note does not include the remuneration for non-executive directors.

4.1 Note 4.1 Retirements due to ill-health (Group)

These estimated costs are calculated on an average basis and will be borne by the NHS Pension Scheme.

During 2021/22 there were 10 early retirements from the trust agreed on the grounds of ill-health (10 in the

year ended 31 March 2021). The estimated additional pension liabilities of these ill-health retirements is

£558k (£372k in 2020/21).  
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5 Operating leases (Trust and Group)

Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust as a 

Lessee

5.1 Operating lease expense

Land Buildings Other Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Operating lease expense 2021/22

Minimum lease payments 755 13,245 3,479 17,479 

Contingent rents 0 0 0 0

Less sublease payments received 0 0 0 0

Total 755 13,245 3,479 17,479 

Land Buildings Other Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Future minimum lease payments due: 

- not later than one year; 484 8,488 5,434 14,405 

- later than one year and not later than five years; 1,441 15,447 7,078 23,966 

- later than five years. 638 32,667 201 33,506 

Total 2,563 56,602 12,713 71,878 

Future minimum sublease payments to be received - - - - 

Land Buildings Other Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Operating lease expense 2020/21

Minimum lease payments 641 12,098 4,318 17,057 

Contingent rents 0 0 0 0

Less sublease payments received 0 0 0 0

Total 641 12,098 4,318 17,057 

Land Buildings Other Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Future minimum lease payments due: 

- not later than one year; 473 8,925 3,845 13,243 

- later than one year and not later than five years; 1,459 6,271 8,381 16,111 

- later than five years. - 26,347 996 27,343 

Total 1,932 41,543 13,222 56,697 

Future minimum sublease payments to be received - - 

The future minimum lease payments are in respect of 253

operating leases (269, 2020/21), of varying contract

values and terms.

5.2 Other auditor remuneration (Trust and Group)

5.3 Limitation on auditor's liability (Trust and Group)

In 2021/2022, there were no services provided by the external auditors, Mazars LLP, other than the

statutory audit for the Trust's Annual Accounts and the Charity Accounts.

The cost of auditing the Annual Accounts is shown under the heading of 'Fees payable to the external

auditor audit services- statutory audit' in Note 3.  This charge detailed in Note 3 is inclusive of VAT.

There is no limitation on the auditor's liability for the audit of the Trust's or Charitable funds annual

accounts.  

This note discloses costs and commitments incurred in operating lease arrangements where Manchester

University NHS Foundation Trust is the lessee.

Mazars LLP are the appointed external auditors for the Trust and the Group. Mazars LLP contract

commenced on the 1st December 2018, on a 2 year contract with the option to extend for a 12 month

period.  The contract has now been extended for a further twelve months to December 2022.
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6 Finance income

Finance income represents interest received on assets and investments in the period.

Trust Group Trust Group

2021/22 2021/22 2020/21 2020/21

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Interest on bank accounts 154 154 30 30 

NHS charitable fund investment income - 525 - 536 
Total finance income 154 679 30 566 

7 Finance expenditure (Trust and Group)

2021/22 2020/21

£000 £000 

7.1 Interest expense:

Loans from the Department of Health and 3,077 2,602 

Other loans 20 58 

Interest on late payment of commercial debt 1 - 

18,109 18,882 

19,574 19,304 

Total interest expense 40,781 40,846 

Unwinding of discount on provisions (63) (62)
Total finance costs 40,718 40,784 

7.2

2021/22 2020/21

£000 £000 

1 2 

Amounts included within interest payable 

arising from claims made under this 

legislation 1 - 

8.1 Impairment of assets (Trust and Group)

2021/22 2020/21

£000 £000 

Changes in market price 91,430 77,525 

Total net impairments charged to operating surplus / deficit 91,430 77,525 

- 750 
Total net impairments 91,430 78,275 

8.2 Other gains or losses (Trust and Group)

2021/22 2020/21

£000 £000 

(628) (94)
Total other gains / (losses) (628) (94)

Fair value losses on financial assets and investments

Main finance costs on PFI schemes obligations

Contingent finance costs on PFI scheme obligations

The late payment of commercial debts (interest) Act 1998 / Public Contract Regulations 2015 

(Trust and Group)

Finance expenditure represents interest and other charges involved in the borrowing of money or

asset financing.

Net impairments charged to operating surplus / deficit resulting 

from:

Impairments charged to the revaluation reserve

Total liability accruing in year under this legislation as a result of late 

payments
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9.1 Note 9.1 Intangible assets - 2021/22

Trust and Group

Software  

licences

Development 

expenditure

Intangible 

assets under 

construction Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2021 - brought 

forward 22,239 1,361 1,444 25,044 

Additions 1,717 - 24,924 26,641 

Impairments - - (17,785) (17,785)

Reclassifications - - 3,391 3,391 
Valuation / gross cost at 31 March 2022 23,956 1,361 11,974 37,291 

Amortisation at 1 April 2021 - brought forward 19,018 1,361 - 20,379 

Provided during the year 805 - - 805 
Amortisation at 31 March 2022 19,823 1,361 - 21,184 

Net book value at 31 March 2022 4,133 - 11,974 16,107 

Net book value at 1 April 2021 3,221 - 1,444 4,665 

9.2 Note 9.2 Intangible assets - 2020/21

Group

Software  

licences

Development 

expenditure

Intangible 

assets under 

construction Total 

Trust Trust Trust Trust and 

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2020 - as 

previously stated 21,842 1,361 42 23,245 

Additions 397 - 17,244 17,641 

Impairments - - (25,996) (25,996)

Reclassifications - - 10,154 10,154 
Valuation / gross cost at 31 March 2021 22,239 1,361 1,444 25,044 

Amortisation at 1 April 2020 - as previously stated 17,878 1,361 - 19,239 

Provided during the year 1,140 - - 1,140 
Amortisation at 31 March 2021 19,018 1,361 - 20,379 

Net book value at 31 March 2021 3,221 - 1,444 4,665 

Net book value at 1 April 2020 3,964 - 42 4,006 

The majority of the 2021/22 additions included as intangible assets above relate to the implementation of the EPIC

Electronic Patient Record across the trust as part of the development known as the HIVE project. This will deliver a

modern patient electronic record system for all parts of the trust. While this system will deliver significant benefits to the

trust in the form of cost savings and patient experience and safety improvements, it is not a commercial investment

proposition and as a result the value in use of the system at interim and final stages will be significantly less than the

costs incurred to deliver it. Consequently an impairment loss of £17.6m has been recognised in 2021/22 (£16.8m of

which relates to the Hive project). Nevertheless the project will deliver an overall positive cash impact and improvements

in patient safety and experience over its life.
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10.1 Property, plant and equipment

Group Land

Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings

Assets under 

construction

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings

Charitable 

fund PPE 

assets Total 

Trust Trust Trust Trust Trust Trust Trust Charity Group

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Valuation/gross cost at 1 April 2021 - 

brought forward 16,563 511,460 53,849 265,271 512 59,834 19,615 127 927,231 

Transfers by absorption 5,976 58,860 (3,809) 43,360 191 3,227 758 - 108,563 

Additions - 1,841 128,446 20,363 214 14,919 263 - 166,046 

Impairments (875) (103,071) - (2,091) - (11,297) - - (117,334)

Reversals of impairments - 43,689 - - - - - - 43,689 

Revaluations 512 9,923 - - - - - - 10,435 

Reclassifications - 103,071 (117,759) - - 11,297 - - (3,391)

Transfers to / from assets held for sale (2,300) - - - - - - - (2,300)

Alignment of accounting policies following 

transfer by absorption - - - - - (3,227) - - (3,227)

Valuation/gross cost at 31 March 2022 19,876 625,773 60,727 326,903 917 74,753 20,636 127 1,129,712 

Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2021 - 

brought forward - 30 - 218,070 511 47,086 19,013 63 284,773 

Transfers by absorption - - - 28,545 186 1,387 539 - 30,657 

Provided during the year - 18,102 - 11,659 20 5,106 214 7 35,108 

Revaluations - (18,132) - - - - - - (18,132)

Alignment of accounting policies following 

transfer by absorption - - - - - (1,387) - - (1,387)

Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 

2022 - - - 258,274 717 52,192 19,766 70 331,019 

Net book value at 31 March 2022 19,876 625,773 60,727 68,629 200 22,561 871 57 798,693 

Net book value at 1 April 2021 16,563 511,430 53,849 47,201 1 12,748 602 64 642,458 

Net book value at 31 March 2022

Owned - purchased 19,806 279,496 60,727 61,514 200 22,250 753 57 444,802 

On-SoFP PFI contracts and other service 

concession arrangements - 336,017 - - - - - - 336,017 

Owned - donated/granted 70 10,260 - 5,539 - 311 118 - 16,298 

Owned - equipment donated from DHSC, 

UKHSA and NHSE for COVID response - - - 1,576 - - - - 1,576 

NBV total at 31 March 2022 19,876 625,773 60,727 68,629 200 22,561 871 57 798,693 

Of the £646m net book value of land and buildings subject to valuation, £626m relates to specialised assets valued on a depreciated replacement cost basis. Here the valuer bases their

assessment on the cost to the Trust of replacing the service potential of the assets. 

During 2021/22, the Trust received land and building assets via a transfer by absorption totalling £81.7m. These assets were transferred from Pennine Acute Healthcare NHS Trust.  There was

no consideration paid for these assets.The Trust also transferred assets valued at £3.8m to other NHS trusts for Nil consideration

The Trust’s Land and Buildings were revalued by the District Valuer during 2021/22. The above figures are as per the valuation dated 31 March 2022 which applied the Royal Institute of

Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Valuation Global Standards 2017 (‘Red Book’).

£117m of impairment losses have been recognised. £103m relates to buildings where the capital expenditure incurred is not deemed to result in an increase in the service potential and 

therefore accounting carrying value of the building.  A reversal of impairment losses previously recognised in expenditure totalling £44m has been recognised on those assets that have 

increased in value following the revaluation by the District Valuer as at March 2022.
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10.2 Property, plant and equipment

Group Land

Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings

Assets under 

construction

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings

Charitable 

fund PPE 

assets Total 

Trust Trust Trust Trust Trust Trust Trust Charity Group

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2020 - as 

previously stated 15,063 514,914 31,951 244,414 512 54,484 19,601 127 881,066 

Transfers by absorption 1,500 1,716 - (207) - - - - 3,009 

Additions - 6,720 84,317 21,064 - 5,350 14 - 117,465 

Impairments - (52,769) - - - (3,561) - - (56,330)

Reversals of impairments - 4,051 - - - - - - 4,051 

Revaluations - (11,876) - - - - - - (11,876)

Reclassifications - 48,704 (62,419) - - 3,561 - - (10,154)

Valuation/gross cost at 31 March 2021 16,563 511,460 53,849 265,271 512 59,834 19,615 127 927,231 

Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2020 - 

as previously stated - - - 211,131 511 42,398 18,831 56 272,927 

Transfers by absorption - 30 - - - - - - 30 

Provided during the year - 15,711 - 6,939 - 4,688 182 7 27,527 

Revaluations - (15,711) - - - - - - (15,711)

Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 

2021 - 30 - 218,070 511 47,086 19,013 63 284,773 

Net book value at 31 March 2021 16,563 511,430 53,849 47,201 1 12,748 602 64 642,458 

Net book value at 1 April 2020 15,063 514,914 31,951 33,283 1 12,086 770 71 608,139 

Net book value at 31 March 2021

Owned - purchased 16,486 198,904 53,849 43,891 1 12,702 465 64 326,362 

On-SoFP PFI contracts and other service - 305,005 - - - - - - 305,005 

Owned - donated/granted 77 7,521 - 2,278 - 46 137 - 10,059 

Owned - equipment donated from DHSC 

and NHSE for COVID response - - - 1,032 - - - - 1,032 

NBV total at 31 March 2021 16,563 511,430 53,849 47,201 1 12,748 602 64 642,458 
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10.3 Economic Life of Non-Current Assets (Trust and Group)

2021/2022 2021/2022 2020/2021 2020/2021

Economic Life of Non-Current Assets

Minimum 

Life

Maximum 

Life

Minimum 

Life

Maximum 

Life

Years Years Years Years

Trust and 

Group

Trust and 

Group

Trust and 

Group

Trust and 

Group

Purchased, Donated or Granted

Software 5 14 5 7

Development expenditure 5 7 5 7

Buildings (Excluding Dwellings) 1 90 1 90

Plant and Machinery 1 15 1 15

Transport Equipment 1 10 1 10

Information Technology 1 10 1 10

Furniture and Fittings 1 10 1 10

11 Other investments / financial assets (non-current)

Trust Group Trust Group

2021/22 2021/22 2020/21 2020/21

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Carrying value at 1 April - brought forward 1,498 23,800 1,592 20,035 

Acquisitions in year - 1,803 - - 

Movement in fair value through profit and loss (628) (628) (94) (94)

Movement in fair value through OCI - 440 - 3,859 

Carrying value at 31 March 870 25,415 1,498 23,800 

12
2020/21

Land Buildings Total Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Net Book Value at 1st April 135 75 210 210 

Assets classified as available for sale in the 2,300 - 2,300 - 

Net Book Value at 31st March 2,435 75 2,510 210 

The above asset lives relate to both intangible and tangible assets.

The Acquistions of Investments in year relate to the transfer of investments previously held by Pennine

Acute Hospitals NHS Trust in relation to charitable funds at North Manchester General Hospital.

During 2021/22 the trust classified the Stretford Memorial Hospital Site as held for sale, following

commercial discussions which indicated the sale was likely to complete within 12 months of 31st March

2022. As at 31 March 2022 the Trust and the Group held two assets for sale, valued at £2.5m (31 March

2021, one asset valued at £210k). The assets are land and buildings situated in Manchester.

Non-current assets held for sale and assets in disposal groups (Trust and Group)
2021/22

The Trust reviews all investments on a regular basis to ensure the fair value is reported in the Statement of

Financial Position.
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13 Inventories (Trust and Group)

31 March 2022

Drugs Consumables

Consumables 

donated from 

DHSC group 

bodies* Energy Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Carrying Value as at 1 April 2021 7,715 13,799 0 378 21,892

Transfer by absorption 0 722 162 52 936

Additions 225,989 31,006 6,908 913 264,816

Inventories Consumed (Recognised in Expenses) (227,493) (30,502) (7,070) (770) (265,835)

Carrying Value at 31st March 2022 6,211 15,025 0 573 21,809

31 March 2021

Drugs Consumables

Consumables 

donated from 

DHSC group 

bodies* Energy Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Carrying Value as at 1 April 2020 6,987 11,355 0 276 18,618

Additions 160,132 30,070 28,123 102 218,427

Inventories Consumed (Recognised in Expenses) (159,404) (27,626) (28,123) 0 (215,153)

Carrying Value at 31st March 2022 7,715 13,799 0 378 21,892

In response to the COVID 19 pandemic, the Department of Health and Social Care centrally procured personal protective equipment and passed these to

NHS providers free of charge. During 2021/22 the Trust received £6,908k of items purchased by DHSC (2020/21: £28,123k).

These inventories were recognised as additions to inventory at deemed cost with the corresponding benefit recognised in income. The utilisation of these

items is included in the expenses disclosed above and are included in the table below in the column marked *.

The deemed cost of these inventories was charged directly to expenditure on receipt with the corresponding benefit recognised in income.



Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Accounts 2021/2022

14.1 Receivables

Trust Group Trust Group
31 March 

2022

31 March 

2022

31 March 

2021

31 March 

2021

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Current

Contract receivables - invoiced 38,810 38,810 39,980 39,980 

Contract Receivables - not yet invoiced 30,199 30,199 65,277 65,277 

Allowance for impaired contract receivables / 

assets (10,814) (10,814) (13,649) (13,649)

Prepayments (non-PFI) 17,754 17,754 13,212 13,212 

VAT receivable 12,387 12,387 3,741 3,741 

Other receivables 43 43 - - 

NHS charitable funds receivables - 192 - 501 

Total current receivables 88,379 88,571 108,561 109,062 

Non-current

Contract Receivables - not yet invoiced 15,941 15,941 688 688 

Allowance for impaired contract receivables / 

assets (3,653) (3,653) - - 

Finance Lease Receivable 528 528 528 528 

NHS charitable funds receivables - 8 - - 

Clinician pension tax debtor** 2,841 2,841 4,429 4,429 

Total non-current receivables 15,657 15,665 5,645 5,645 

Of which receivable from NHS and DHSC group bodies: 

Current 26,500 26,500 61,707 61,707 

Non-current 2,841 2,841 4,429 4,429 

14.2 Allowances for credit losses (Trust and Group)

2021/22 2020/21

Contract 

receivables 

and contract 

assets

Contract 

receivables 

and contract 

assets

£000 £000 

Allowances as at 1 Apr 2021 13,649 8,128 

Transfers by absorption 578 - 

New allowances arising 3,622 6,489 

Changes in existing allowances (1,164) - 

Utilisation of allowances (write offs) (2,218) (968)

Allowances as at 31 Mar 2022 14,467 13,649 

** This debtor has been created following guidance received from NHSI for future cost for tax on clinicians'

pensions.  This is to be funded by NHS England and has a matching provision included in note 19.
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15 Cash and cash equivalents movements

Trust Group Trust Group

2021/22 2021/22 2020/21 2020/21

£000 £000 £000 £000 

At 1 April 317,100 271,199 133,281 140,840 

Transfers by absorption 6,311 6,311 - - 

Net change in year 41,602 39,590 137,918 136,579 

At 31 March 365,013 317,100 271,199 277,419 

Broken down into:

Cash at commercial banks and in hand 530 4,738 241 6,461 

Cash with the Government Banking Service 318,582 318,582 270,958 270,958 

Total cash and cash equivalents as in SoFP 

and SoCF 319,112 323,320 271,199 277,419 

16 Trade and other payables

Trust Group Trust Group

31 March 

2022

31 March 

2022

31 March 

2021

31 March 

2021

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Current 

Trade payables 31,651 31,651 34,540 34,540 

Capital payables 43,000 43,000 33,594 33,594 

Accruals 267,713 267,713 205,448 205,448 

Social security costs 15,077 15,077 12,148 12,148 

VAT payables 266 266 390 390 

Other taxes payable 13,932 13,932 10,737 10,737 

PDC dividend payable 325 325 - - 

Other payables 10,885 10,885 24,492 24,492 

NHS charitable funds: trade and other payables - 77 - 193 

Total current trade and other payables 382,849 382,926 321,349 321,542 

Total non-current trade and other payables - - 2,598 2,598 

Of which payables from NHS and DHSC group bodies: 

Current 33,574 33,574 25,256 25,256 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, in hand and cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are

readily convertible investments of known value which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Third Party Assets of £47k were held by the Trust as at 31 March 2022 (£40k held by the Trust as at 31

March 2021). These are excluded from the Trust's Cash and Cash Equivalents figures disclosed above.
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17 Other liabilities Trust Group Trust Group
31 March 

2022

31 March 

2022

31 March 

2021

31 March 

2021

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Current 

Deferred income: contract liabilities 59,360 59,360 35,084 35,084 

NHS charitable funds: other liabilities - 3,327 - 1,694 
Total other current liabilities 59,360 62,687 35,084 36,778 

Non-current

Deferred income: contract liabilities 2,386 2,386 3,817 3,817 
Total other non-current liabilities 2,386 2,386 3,817 3,817 

18 Borrowings Trust Group Trust Group
31 March 

2022

31 March 

2022

31 March 

2021

31 March 

2021

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Current 

Loans from DHSC 8,826 8,826 7,684 7,684 

Other Loans 678 678 322 322 

Obligations under PFI service concession 

contracts (excl. lifecycle) 14,497 14,497 12,284 12,284 
Total current borrowings 24,001 24,001 20,290 20,290 

Non-current

Loans from DHSC 93,307 93,307 84,992 84,992 

Other loans 3,748 3,748 827 827 

Obligations under PFI service concession 

contracts (excl. lifecycle) 274,639 274,639 289,129 289,129 
Total non-current borrowings 371,694 371,694 374,948 374,948 

18.1 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities (Trust and Group)

2021/22 Loans from 

DHSC Other loans

PFI 

schemes Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Carrying value at 1 April 2021 92,676 1,149 301,413 395,238 

Cash movements:

Financing cash flows - payments and receipts 

of principal (5,691) (637) (12,284) (18,612)

Financing cash flows - payments of interest (3,102) (37) (18,109) (21,248)

Non-cash movements:

Transfers by absorption 15,173 3,939 - 19,112 

Application of effective interest rate 3,077 20 18,109 21,206 

Other changes - (8) 7 (1)
Carrying value at 31 March 2022 102,133 4,426 289,136 395,695 

2020/21 Loans from 

DHSC Other loans

PFI 

schemes Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Carrying value at 1 April 2020 96,655 1,946 313,027 411,628 

Cash movements:

Financing cash flows - payments and receipts 

of principal (3,925) (802) (11,614) (16,341)

Financing cash flows - payments of interest (2,656) (53) (18,882) (21,591)

Non-cash movements: .

Application of effective interest rate 2,602 58 18,882 21,542 
Carrying value at 31 March 2021 92,676 1,149 301,413 395,238 
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19 Provisions for liabilities and charges (Trust and Group) Current Non-Current Current Non-Current

31 March 2022 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2021

£000 £000 £000 £000

Pensions- Early departure costs 533 4,651 574 3,049

Pensions- Injury benefits 222 4,432 220 2,804

Other Legal Claims 2,610 - 1,640 0

Restructurings 5,454 745 2,759 5,065

Clinical Pensions Tax Reimbursement 43 2,841 0 4,429

Other 43,774 1,234 19,682 1,275

Totals 52,636 13,903 24,875 16,622

19.1 Provisions for liabilities and charges analysis

2021/22

Pensions: early 

departure costs

Pensions: injury 

benefits Legal claims Re-structuring

Clinician pension tax 

reimbursement Other Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

At 1 April 2021 3,623 3,024 1,640 7,824 4,429 20,957 41,497 

Transfers by absorption - - 654 555 495 4,643 6,347 

Change in the discount rate 102 174 - - - - 276 

Arising during the year 2,218 1,704 1,446 2,015 - 29,589 36,972 

Utilised during the year (540) (219) (345) (215) - (731) (2,050)

Reversed unused (185) - (785) (3,980) (2,040) (9,450) (16,440)

Unwinding of discount (34) (29) - - - - (63)

At 31 March 2022 5,184 4,654 2,610 6,199 2,884 45,008 66,539 

Expected timing of cash flows: 

- not later than one year; 533 222 2,610 5,454 43 43,774 52,636 

- later than one year and not later than five years; 2,163 919 - 745 122 1,234 5,183 

- later than five years. 2,488 3,513 - - 2,719 - 8,720 

Total 5,184 4,654 2,610 6,199 2,884 45,008 66,539 



2020/21

Pensions: early 

departure costs

Pensions: injury 

benefits Legal claims Re-structuring

Clinician pension tax 

reimbursement Other Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

At 1 April 2020 4,221 2,938 910 5,817 3,773 10,393 28,052 

Change in the discount rate (201) (63) - - 656 - 392 

Arising during the year 192 394 865 2,060 - 10,615 14,126 

Utilised during the year (554) (218) - (8) - (51) (831)

Reversed unused - - (135) (45) - - (180)

Unwinding of discount (35) (27) - - - - (62)

At 31 March 2021 3,623 3,024 1,640 7,824 4,429 20,957 41,497 

Expected timing of cash flows: 

- not later than one year; 574 220 1,640 2,759 - 19,682 24,875 

- later than one year and not later than five years; 2,895 902 - 5,065 2,215 1,275 12,352 

- later than five years. 154 1,902 - - 2,214 - 4,270 

Total 3,623 3,024 1,640 7,824 4,429 20,957 41,497 

Other provisions arising in year include £20.4m re. staff grading claims, of which £16.8m is a transfer from trade payables representing the liability as at 31 March 2021.

Other provisions are made in respect of a number of unconnected liabilities. The Trust has taken professional advice, and used its best estimates in arriving at the provisions. These include provision for

potential litigation for contractual obligations.  The expected timing of the cash flows shown above is estimated from the best information available to the Trust at this point in time, but these are uncertain.  

Pensions - Early Departure Costs per above relates to sums payable to former employees having retired prematurely due to injury at work.  The provision is based upon current and expected benefits advised 

by the NHS Pensions Agency and the computed life expectancies of pension recipients.

Other legal claims - based on professional assessments, which are uncertain to the extent that they are estimates of the likely outcome of individual cases. Due to the dates of settlement of claims, are based

on estimates supplied by NHS Resolution and/or legal advisors.

Restructurings - relates to estimated cost for various service re-design/transformation schemes, which have been committed to by the Trust. These relate to pay-protection and redundancy costs which are

anticipated to be settled within a one year period.

Clinician Pension Tax Reimbursement - This relates to the cost incurred to Clinicians for the tax element due to changes relating to Pensions. This is to be funded centrally by NHS England and is anticipated

to crystallise from 2021/22 and future years.
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19.2 Clinical negligence liabilities

20 Contingent assets and liabilities

20.1 Contingent liabilities

21 Revaluation Reserve

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Trust and 

Group

Trust and 

Group

£000 £000

63,492 49,424

Transfer by absorption 5,352 1,296

Net Impairments 0 (750)

Revaluations 28,567 3,835

Other reserve movements 0 9,687

97,411 63,492

22 Related party Transactions (Trust and Group)

A Group Non-Executive Director is a Governor at the University of Salford

The values relating to the above information are not material transactions.

At 31 March 2022, £1,287,413k was included in provisions of NHS Resolution in respect of clinical

negligence liabilities of Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust (31 March 2021: £592,668k).

The Group Chairman is a member of the General Assembly for the University of Manchester, one of the Non-

Executive directors is the Deputy President and Deputy Vice-Chancellor and a Non-Executive Director is an

Independent Co-opted member.

The Chief Executive is a board member for Manchester Academic Health Science Centre, a research and

innovation body hosted by the Trust.

During the year none of the Board Members or members of the key management staff or parties related to 

Revaluation Reserve at the beginning of the year

Revaluation Reserve at the end of the period 

During 2021/22, a full valuation was completed by the District Valuer with a valuation date of 31st March

2022.

The Trust also has a contingent liability of £383k (£200k at 31 March 2020) which represents amounts in

respect of claims managed by NHS Resolution, and locally managed employment tribunal cases.
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22 Related party Transactions (Trust and Group) cont.

Debtor Creditor Income Expenditure

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

University of Manchester 0 485 8,678 17,027

Manchester Academic Health Science Centre 0 0 0 1

University of Salford 43 12 84 297

Department of Health and Social Care

NHS Bolton CCG

NHS Bury CCG

NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG

NHS Oldham CCG

NHS Salford CCG

NHS Stockport CCG

NHS Tameside And Glossop CCG

NHS Trafford CCG

NHS Wigan Borough CCG

Health Education England

NHS Resolution

Greater Manchester Mental Health NHS FT

Salford Royal NHS FT 

The Christie NHS FT

Public Health England

Manchester Health and Care Commissioning

Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership

23

24 Finance Lease Obligations

Neither the Trust nor the Group had any obligations under Finance Leases in the year to 31 March 2022 (Nil in

the year to 31 March 2021). 

The Department of Health and Social Care is regarded as a related party. During the year the Trust has had a

significant number of material transactions with the Department and with other entities for which the Department

is regarded as the parent department including:  

In addition, the Trust has had a number of material transactions with other Government Departments and other

Central and Local Government bodies, with the greatest amounts relating to Manchester City Council, HM

Revenue and Customs, and the NHS Business Services Authority (Pensions Division).

Name of Organisation

The Trust has entered into a number of transactions with the University of Manchester, the University of Salford

and Manchester Academic Health Science Centre. The values of the Debtors and Creditors as at the 31st

March 2022 and the 2021/22 Income and Expenditure transactions are provided in the table below:-

NHS England -  including Core, North West Commissioning Hub and Greater Manchester Local Office

Contractual capital commitments

Commitments under Capital Expenditure contracts at 31 March 2022 for the Trust and the Group total

£33.755m (31 March 2021 £26.709m) of which £26.098m relates to Property, Plant and Equipment (31 March

2021 £26.671m) and £7.657m relates to Intangible Assets (31 March 2021 £0.038m). All these commitments

are expected to be settled within the next 12 month period.

NHS Heywood, Middleton And Rochdale CCG
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25 On-SoFP PFI service concession arrangements

25.1 On-SoFP PFI service concession arrangement obligations

Trust Group Trust Group

31 March 2022 31 March 2022

Restated 31 

March 2021

Restated 31 

March 2021

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Gross PFI service concession liabilities 503,617 503,617 534,003 534,003 

Of which liabilities are due

- not later than one year; 31,795 31,795 30,393 30,393 

- later than one year and not later than five 

years; 98,331 98,331 108,656 108,656 

- later than five years. 373,491 373,491 394,954 394,954 

Finance charges allocated to future periods (214,481) (214,481) (232,590) (232,590)

Net PFI service concession arrangement 

obligation 289,136 289,136 301,413 301,413 

- not later than one year; 14,497 14,497 12,284 12,284 

- later than one year and not later than five 

years; 36,936 36,936 44,540 44,540 

- later than five years. 237,703 237,703 244,589 244,589 

The predecessor Trusts entered into two PFI contracts which transferred to MFT on 1 October 2017.

In 1998, University Hospital of South Manchester NHS FT entered into 35 year PFI contract with South Manchester

Healthcare Limited which expires in 2033. The contract covers the build and operation of two buildings at

Wythenshawe hospital – the Acute Unit and the Mental Health Unit.

The Acute Unit consists of an Accident and Emergency department, a burns unit, coronary care unit, intensive care

unit, six operating theatres, five medical and five surgical wards, an x-ray department, fracture clinic and renal

department.

The Mental Health Unit provides adult and older people’s outpatient and inpatient Mental Health services. The Trust

sublets the Mental Health Unit to Manchester Mental Health and Social Care Trust. This agreement is treated as an

operating lease and the income received is included within operating income.

In 2033, at the end of the PFI contract, the two buildings covered by the contract will transfer from South Manchester

Healthcare Ltd to the Trust.

The comparatives figures for this note have been restated to exclude PFI contingent rent costs, which had been

previously been included for the Trust's Wythenshawe PFI scheme. The impact of the restatement has been to

decrease the comparative figure from £1.021m to £0.981m.

In December 2004, the Central Manchester University Hospital NHS Foundation Trust entered into a 38 year

arrangement with Catalyst Healthcare (Manchester) Ltd.  

The scheme involved the build and operation of four significant hospital developments on the Trust's Oxford Road

Campus at an overall cost of approximately £500m. 

In 2042, at the end of the agreement, ownership of the four properties (Manchester Royal Infirmary, Manchester

Children's Hospital, Manchester Eye Hospital and St Mary's Hospital) transfers from Catalyst Healthcare (Manchester)

Ltd to the Trust.

The following obligations in respect of the PFI, LIFT or other service concession arrangements are recognised in the

statement of financial position (note that prior year figures have been re-presented to include contingent rent):
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25 On-SoFP PFI service concession arrangements (cont.)

25.2 Total on-SoFP PFI service concession arrangement commitments

Total future commitments under these on-SoFP schemes are as follows:

Trust Group Trust Group

31 March 2022 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2021

£000 £000 £000 £000 
Total future payments committed in 

respect of the PFI service concession 

arrangements 3,054,160 3,054,160 3,150,982 3,150,982 

Of which payments are due:

- not later than one year; 129,403 129,403 126,677 126,677 

- later than one year and not later than five 

years; 529,061 529,061 517,934 517,934 

- later than five years. 2,395,696 2,395,696 2,506,371 2,506,371 

25.3 Analysis of amounts payable to service concession operator

This note provides an analysis of the unitary payments made to the service concession operator:

Trust Group Trust Group

2021/22 2021/22 2020/21 2020/21

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Unitary payment payable to service 

concession operator 128,186 128,186 125,336 125,336 

Consisting of:

- Interest charge 18,109 18,109 18,882 18,882 

- Repayment of balance sheet obligation 12,284 12,284 11,615 11,615 

- Service element and other charges to 

operating expenditure 66,932 66,932 65,194 65,194 

- Capital lifecycle maintenance 11,287 11,287 10,341 10,341 

- Revenue lifecycle maintenance - - - - 

- Contingent rent 19,574 19,574 19,304 19,304 

Total amount paid to service concession 

operator 128,186 128,186 125,336 125,336 

26 Events after the reporting date

There were no known events following the Statement of Financial Position date, either requiring disclosure, or

resulting in a change to the financial statements of the Trust or the Group.
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27 Financial instruments

27.1 Financial risk management

IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role which Financial Instruments have had during the period in creating or

changing the risks which a body faces in undertaking its activities. Because of the continuing service

provider relationship which the Trust has with its Commissioners, and the way in which those Commissioners

are financed, the Trust is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by business entities. Also,

Financial Instruments play a much more limited role in creating or changing risk for the Trust than would be

typical of listed companies. The Trust has limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds and Financial

Assets and Liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being held to change the

risks facing the Trust in undertaking its activities. For the Group, the MFT Charity does hold investments, and

is therefore exposed to a degree of financial risk. This risk is carefully managed by pursuing a cautious, low

risk Investment Strategy, and by monthly reviews of the performance of investments.

The Trust's Treasury Management operations are carried out by the Finance Department, within parameters

defined formally within the Trust's Standing Financial Instructions, and policies agreed by the Board of

Directors. Similarly, for the Group the Treasury Management of the MFT Charity's investments is carried out

by the Charity Finance Team, following the policies set down by the Trustee, and subject to the approval of

the Charitable Funds Committee. The Trust's and the Group's treasury activities are also subject to review by

Internal Audit.

Liquidity Risk

Net operating costs of the Trust are funded under annual Service Agreements with NHS Commissioners,

which are financed from resources voted annually by Parliament. The Trust largely finances its capital

expenditure from internally generated cash, and funds made available by the Department of Health and

Social Care. Additional funding by way of loans has been arranged with the Independent Trust Financing

Facility to support major capital developments. The Trust is, therefore, exposed to liquidity risks from the loan

funding - however these risks are approved, and comply with NHSI's Risk Assessment Framework. For the

Group, the Charity finances all of its expenditure from the resources which have been donated to it, and

therefore faces no liquidity risk.

Currency Risk

The Trust and the Group are principally domestic organisations with the overwhelming majority of their

transactions, assets and liabilities being in the UK and Sterling based. The Trust and the Group have no

overseas operations, and therefore have low exposure to currency rate fluctuations.

Interest Rate Risk

100% of the Trust's financial assets and 100% of its financial liabilities carry nil or fixed rates of interest. The

Trust is not, therefore, exposed to significant interest rate risk. For the Group, the Charity has interest

bearing bank balances, which are subject to variable rates of interest. However, all other financial assets,

and 100% of financial liabilities, of the Charity carry nil rates of interest. The Charity's bank balances

represent approximately 1% of the Group's total Net Assets, and so the Group is not exposed to significant

interest rate risk.

Credit Risk

The majority of the Trust's Income comes from contracts with other public sector bodies, and therefore the

Trust has low exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposure as at 31 December 2021 is within Receivables

from customers, as disclosed in the Trade and Other Receivables Note to these Accounts (Note 14). For the

Group, the Charity's Income comes only from Donations, Legacies and Investment Income. Therefore the

position of the Group is as for the Trust - the maximum exposure to Credit Risk is in respect of Receivables.

Market Price Risk

The Trust and the Group holds a number of investments at fair value and is therefore exposed to changes in

the market price of these investments. This is not considered to be a significant risk to the Trust given the

relative immateriality of the value of these investments and the Trust and Group's appetite to risk.
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27.2 Carrying values of financial assets (Trust and Group)

Carrying values of financial assets as at 31 

March 2022
Held at amortised 

cost

Held at fair 

value 

through P&L

Held at fair 

value through 

OCI

Total book 

value

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Trade and other receivables excluding non 

financial assets 73,367 - - 73,367 

Other investments / financial assets - 870 - 870 

Cash and cash equivalents 319,112 - - 319,112 

Consolidated NHS Charitable fund financial 

assets 4,400 - 24,545 28,945 

Total at 31 March 2022 396,879 870 24,545 422,294 

Carrying values of financial assets as at 31 

March 2021
Held at amortised 

cost

Held at fair 

value 

through P&L

Held at fair 

value through 

OCI

Total book 

value

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Trade and other receivables excluding non 

financial assets 96,725 - - 96,725 

Other investments / financial assets - 1,498 - 1,498 

Cash and cash equivalents 271,199 - - 271,199 

Consolidated NHS Charitable fund financial 

assets 6,721 - 22,302 29,023 

Total at 31 March 2021 374,645 1,498 22,302 398,445 

27.3 Carrying values of financial liabilities (Trust and Group)

Carrying values of financial liabilities as at 31 March 2022 Held at 

amortised 

cost

£000 

Loans from the Department of Health and Social Care 102,133 

Obligations under PFI service concessions 289,136 

Other borrowings 4,426 

Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities 353,249 

Provisions under contract 56,701 

Consolidated NHS charitable fund financial liabilities - 

Total at 31 March 2022 805,645 

Held at 

amortised 

cost

£000 

Loans from the Department of Health and Social Care 92,676 

Obligations under PFI service concessions 301,413 

Other borrowings 1,149 

Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities 300,672 

Provisions under contract 33,684 

Consolidated NHS charitable fund financial liabilities 193 

Total at 31 March 2021 729,787 

Carrying values of financial liabilities as at 31 March 2021
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27.4 Maturity of financial liabilities

Trust Group Trust Group
31 March 

2022

31 March 

2022

Restated 31 

March 2021

Restated 31 

March 2021

£000 £000 £000 £000 

In one year or less 448,932 448,932 358,509 358,509 In more than one year but not more than five 

years 150,024 150,024 165,808 165,808 

In more than five years 443,413 443,413 457,160 457,160 

Total 1,042,369 1,042,369 981,477 981,477 

28 Losses and special payments

Group and trust
Total number 

of cases

Total value of 

cases

Total number 

of cases

Total value of 

cases

Number £000 Number £000 

Losses

Theft - - - - 

Cash losses - - - - 

Fruitless payments and constructive losses - - - - 

Bad debts and claims abandoned 867 2,448 747 1,623 

Stores losses and damage to property 12 62 12 129 

Total losses 879 2,510 759 1,752 

Special payments

Compensation under court order or legally 

binding arbitration award 4 44 - - 

Extra-contractual payments - - - - 

Ex-gratia payments 109 58 77 1,470 

Special severance payments - - - - 

Extra-statutory and extra-regulatory payments - - - - 

Total special payments 113 102 77 1,470 

Total losses and special payments 992 2,612 836 3,222 

Compensation payments received - - 

Losses and Special Payments are reported on an accruals basis, excluding provisions for future losses.

There is one transaction reported within the table above in excess of £300K, which relates to a Bad Debt written off

in the year following unsuccessful collection activities

The following maturity profile of financial liabilities is based on the contractual undiscounted cash flows. This differs

to the amounts recognised in the statement of financial position which are discounted to present value.

2021/22 2020/21

The comparatives figures for this note have been restated to exclude PFI contingent rent costs, which had been 

previously been included for the Trust's Wythenshawe PFI scheme. The impact of the restatement has been to 

decrease the comparative figure from £1.021m to £0.981m.



29 Taxpayers' and Others' Equity

29.1 Public Dividend Capital

29.2 Revaluation Reserve

29.3 Income and Expenditure Reserve

29.4 Charitable Fund Reserves

30 Prior period adjustments

There have been no prior period adjustments. 

● Restricted Funds are those funds which have been donated, with specific purposes stipulated for the use of the

Funds. 

● Unrestricted funds are those funds which have been donated, and can be used for any appropriate purpose.

● Revaluation Reserve, which reflects the difference between the latest valuation of the Charity's Investments, and

the original sums of money invested. The Statement of Financial Activities shows the change in value in the

current financial year. The Statement of Financial Position shows the cumulative unrealised gain since the initial

investment was made.

Public Dividend Capital (PDC) represents the Department of Health and Social Care's equity interest in the Trust,

i.e. it is a form of long term Government finance which was initially provided to the Trust when its predecessor

organisations were founded as NHS Trusts in 1991, enabling it to acquire its assets from the Secretary of State for

Health at that time. 

Occasionally specific Capital Expenditure, can be funded by additional PDC being issued to the Trust. During the

year the Trust has received £84m comprising £55.6m Buildings, £6.8m Medical Equipment and £22m IT (2020/21

£49.9m comprised of £26.8m building works, £12.5m COVID-19 equipment, £7.8m medical equipment and £2.8m

for IT Schemes).

As outlined at Note 1.27 to these Accounts, a PDC Dividend of 3.5% per year is payable by the Trust to the

Department of Health and Social Care in respect of the value of the Trust's Average "Net Relevant Assets".  

The Revaluation Reserve represents differences between the latest valuations of the Trust's land and buildings and

their cost, less depreciation to date of the buildings, as outlined in Note 1.10.

The Income and Expenditure Reserve represents the accumulation of all surpluses and deficits made by the Trust

since its inception.

The Charitable Fund Reserves are made up as follows:-
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31

Per Charity 

Accounts 

2021/2022

Consolidation 

Consistency 

Adjustments 

year to 31st 

March 2022

Figures Used 

in 

Consolidated 

Accounts 

2021/22

Per Charity 

Accounts 2020/21

Consolidation 

Consistency 

Adjustments year 

to 31st March 

2021

Figures Used in 

Consolidated 

Accounts year to 

31st March 2021

Total Total Total Total Total Total

Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Income From:

Donations and Legacies 4,662 0 4,662 9,268 0 9,268

Investments 525 0 525 536 0 536

Total 5,187 0 5,187 9,804 0 9,804

Expenditure on:

Raising funds 1,720 1,720 1,996 0 1,996

Charitable activities 4,471 1,030 5,501 8,992 (263) 8,729

Total 6,191 1,030 7,221 10,988 (263) 10,725

Net (loss)/gain on investments 440 0 440 3,859 0 3,859

Losses on disposals of assets 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net income/(expenditure) (564) (1,030) (1,594) 2,675 263 2,938

Transfer to Greater Manchester Mental Health Charity 0 0

Transfer from Wythenshawe Charity to MFT Charity 0 0

Net movement in funds (564) (1,030) (1,594) 2,675 263 2,938

Total Funds Brought Forward 0 0

Total Funds Carried Forward (564) (1,594) (2,320) (2,844)

Consolidation of Charitable Funds - Reconciliation of Charity Accounts to Consolidation Figures - Statement of Financial Activities / Statement of Comprehensive 

Income

Note 1.4 details the reason for the requirement to adjust the values relating to the Charity, when consolidating into the Group Accounts.

The main adjustment is due to the Charity Accounts being completed following the accounting rules detailed in the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP). This includes

accounting for expenditure including any commitments made. The Group accounts are based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), which does not include the

commitment accounting. Therefore, for the purpose of the consolidation the Charity accounts are amended for this difference. These are the consolidation adjustments included

note 31 and 32. 
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32 Consolidation of Charitable Funds - Reconciliation of Charity Accounts to Consolidation Figures - Statement of Financial Position

Per Charity 

Accounts

Consolidation 

Consistency 

Adjustments

Figures Used in 

Consolidated 

Accounts

Per Charity 

Accounts

Consolidation 

Consistency 

Adjustments

Figures Used in 

Consolidated 

Accounts

31st March 2022 31st March 2022 31st March 2022 31st March 2021 31st March 2021 31st March 2021

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Fixed Assets

Tangible Assets 57 57 64 0 64

Investments 24,548 24,548 22,305 0 22,305

Debtors 8 8 0 0 0

Total Fixed Assets 24,613 0 24,613 22,369 0 22,369

Current Assets

Debtors 192 192 501 0 501

Cash at Bank and in Hand 4,208 4,208 6,220 0 6,220

Total Current Assets 4,400 0 4,400 6,721 0 6,721

Current Liabilities 

Creditors Falling Due Within One Year (9,591) 6,187 (3,404) (8,801) 6,914 (1,887)

Net Current Assets (5,191) 6,187 996 (2,080) 6,914 4,834

Total Assets less Current Liabilities 19,422 6,187 25,609 20,289 6,914 27,203

Non - Current Liabilities 

Provision for Liabilities and Charges (374) 374 0 (679) 679 0

Total Net Assets 19,048 6,561 25,609 19,610 7,593 27,203

Funds of the Charity

Restricted Income Funds 7,572 6,561 14,133 8,255 7,593 15,848

Unrestricted Income Funds 3,117 3,117 5,241 0 5,241

Revaluation Reserve 8,359 8,359 6,114 0 6,114

Total Charity Funds 19,048 6,561 25,609 19,610 7,593 27,203








